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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
SWAROJGAR LAGHUBITTA BITTIYA SANSTHA LTD.

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Swarojgar Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd. (“the Company™), which
comprise the Statement of Financial Position as at 31** Ashadh 2081 (July 15", 2024) the Statement of Profit or Lass and Other
Comprehensive Income, the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows for the period (1% Shrawan 2080 to 31

Ashadh 2081) then ended on that date, and a summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes to accounts
(hereafter referred to as “the financial statements™).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid financial statements presents
fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Company, as at 319 Ashadh 2081 {July 15" 2024), and its financial performance,
changes in equity, cash flows for the period (1" Shrawan 2080 to 31* Ashadh 2081) then ended, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory notes to accounts, in accordance with Nepal Financial Reporting Standards (NFRS).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with Nepal Standards on Auditing (NSAs). Our responsibilities under
those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We
are independent of the Company in accordance with the Handbook of The Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants issued by The
Institute of Chartered Accountants of Nepal (1ICAN), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the ICAN's
Handbook of The Code of Ethics for Professional Accouniants. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the financial statements,

Emphasis of Matter

We draw attention to note 3 18 read with note 4 33 of the financial statements regarding detection of fraud in Hetauda branch of the
company relating to amount misappropriated equaling to Rs. 1,01,20,000.00, for which the management has provided 100% provision on
such amount and the company is in the due process of conducting special investigation and taking legal action for the recovery of the
stated amount and any amount which may have been misappropriated during the F.Y. 2081-82. Our opinion is not modified in respect of
this matter.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements
of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of the audit of financial statements as a whole, and in forming the audit
opinion thereon. We do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our report

[ S.N .f_h.i-e_&udit matters | Mauue?ﬂ which key audit matter was id__dremd_t
1 Recognition of interest income | Our audit approach regarding verification of process of

The interest income of the company is recognized on an accrual | interest recognition included

basis and follows the Interest Income Recognition Guidelines |
issued by Nepal Rastra Bank. The guideline requires suspension of | a) Obtaining an understanding of the process of accrual |
interest recognition on accrual basis for the non-performing loans of interest income on loans and advances on Core
Given the system lacks capability to suspend income recognition on Banking Software (CBS) of the company.
the basis of overdue status of loan and fair value of collateral as well | b) Test-Checking of interest income in comparison to |
as fair value of collateral on regular basis, requiring manual manual interest income calculation ‘

| | calculation for interest recognition, we have considered it as a key ‘
audit matter, R -

|2 | Impairment of loans and advances Our audit approach regarding verification of impairment

I As per NRB Directive, the Company shall measure impairment loss | of loans and advances included:

; on loans and advances at the higher of® ‘
= = e a) Review the overdue status of loans and advances by

_al ‘153ﬁ' i W—QOCO /03G9 « 16" Annual Report-2080/081
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Qur opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion
thereon. Tn connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information when it becomes
available to us and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements, or our
knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to communicate the matter to those
charged with governance.

Responsibility of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with NFRS, and for such
internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of the financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud and error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either
intends to liquidate the Company or 10 cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasenable assurance is a high level of assurance
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with NSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements

As part of an audit in accordance with NSAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the
audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform
andit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud
may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control

e Obtain an understanding of internal controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control

e  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made
by management.

« Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Qur
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

* Evaluate the overall presentation, Structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards applied.

From the matiers communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances we determine that a

S. DUWADI & ASSOCIATES @ : Kritipur-1, Kathmandu
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.
Bank for loan loss provisioning, and
*  Amount determined adopting Incurred Loss Model as per the

Carve out provided on NFRS 9 financial instruments -
impairment.

As per the norms prescribed by NRB, provision at prescribed rate
should be created on loans and advances based on the overdue
status of leans and advances as well as uiilization status of the
facility, status of security borrower’s whereabouts etc

As per NFRS 9, impairment of loans and advances should be made
on individual impairment basis for the loans and advances that are
individually significant and collective impairment basis for the
homogeneous groups of loan that are not considered individually
significant.

Given the fact that impairment of loans and advances under
incurred loss model require assessment of future cash flows as well
as historical loss experiences of portfolios and impairment of loans

and advances under NRB norms for loan loss provisioning will |

require assessment of overdue status of loans and advances and

proper utilization of loan for intended purpose, assessment of |
availability and accuracy of required data for impairment of loans

and advances under incurred loss model as well as NRB norms is
regarded as key audit Matter

9 Kritipur-1, Kathmandu
& ; +977-9810126265

4 casauravduwadi@gmail.com

obtaining data from the system and that from da1a|
submitted to the other authorities

b} Review of sampled credit files, among other things,
from the perspective of the utilization of loans and
advances for the intended purpose by way of scrutiny of
repayment behavior, account movemeni, account
turnover efe. including the business visits of the selected |
borrowers |

| ¢) Grouping of homogeneous group of loan was assessed

on the basis of nature and purpose of loans and data of |
historical loss experience in portfolios are assessed on the |
basis of past due data from the system as well as data of |
loan loss provision of the defined group in the past |

d)Verification of accuracy of provision against loan
performing loan calculated by the IT system and manual
calculation on sampling basis

Information technology-general controls

IT controls with respect to recording of transactions, auto-
calculation of impairment charges on loans and advances, aulo-

| calculation of interest expense of deposits, generation of varicus
| financial/non-financial reports along with generation of reports in
| compliance with NRB requirements is highly dependent on

effectiveness of company’s CBS and other allied systems.

Any control lapses on these systems may result in inappropriate
reporting to the management, those charged with governance.
auditors, shareholders, regulators and other stakeholders. Hence
testing of IT controls is regarded as key audit matter

QOther Matter
The financial statements of Swarojgar Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd. For the year ended 31" Ashadh, 2080, were audited by another
auditor who expressed unmodified opinion on those statements on 18" Magh 2080

Qur audit approach reg,arclli'ng information 'L-Eﬁ\;mog‘f is |
based upon Information Technology Guidelines 2012
issued by NRB, and included:

a) Test- Checking of booking of interest income on |
deposits and interest expense on loans and advances
in the CBS

b) Test-Checking of accounting for loan loss |
provisioning in the CBS, |

¢) Review of other reports generated by the CBS on |
sample basis

d)  Study of the IS audit report of the company

_

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company's Management is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Management report, Report of the Board of Directors and Chairman’s statement but does not include the financial
statements and our auditor's report thereon Such information is expected to be made available to us after the date of this report,

o

—
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matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh
the public interest benefits of such communication

Report on Requirements of Banks and Financial Institution Act, 2073 and Companies Act, 2063

1

iii

i

il

For,

We have obtained all the information and explanations which were considered necessary for the purpose of our audit. We have also
been provided with the replies to the queries as per our demand

The Company has kept proper books of accounts as required by law, in so far as it appears from our examination of these books of
account,

The Statement of Financial Position, Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income, the Statement of Changes in
Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows and attached Schedules along with significant accounting policies and explanatory notes to
accounts dealt with by this report are prepared in accordance with NFRS and procedures as prescribed by Nepal Rastra Bank (NRB)
and are in agreement with the books of account maintained by the Company

Loans have been written off and transactions have been carried out in a satisfactory manner as prescribed

In our opinion, based on the information and explanations made available to us during the course of our audit the aforesaid financial
statements presents fairly, in all material respocts, the financial position of the Company, as at 31" Ashadh 2081 (July 15" 2024),
and its financial performance, changes in equity, cash flows for the period (1** Shrawan 2080 to 31" Ashadh 2081) then ended.
During our examination of the books of accounts of the Company, Except for the case of fraud detailed in “Emphasis of Mater”
Paragraph of this report, we have not come across any other cases where the Shareholders or any director th ereof or any representative
or any office holder or any employee of the Company has acted contrary to the provisions of law or caused loss or damage to the
Company and

We have not come across any fraudulence in the accounts, based on cur sample examination of the books

S. Duwadi & Associites, Chartered Accountants

Saurav Duwadi; CA!
Proprietor

Date: 2081 09 27
Place: Kathmandu
UDIN: 250112CA01477MnzkM
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SWAROJGAR LAGHUBITTA BITTIYA SANSTHA LIMITED
Statement of Financial Position

As on 31st Ashad 2081 (15th July 2024)

Figures in NPR
. As on As on
Particulars Note 31st Ashad 2081 31st Ashadh 2080
ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents 4.1 486,136,618.17 301,887,182.35
Statutory Balances and Due from Nepal Rastra Bank 4.2 48,481,886.58 45177,282.22
Placement with Bank and Financial Institutions 43
Derivative Financial Instruments 44
Other Trading Assets 45
Loans and advance to MFIs and Cooperatives 4.6 - .
Loans And Advances To Customers 47 8,071,745,626.83 6,517,332,074.14
Investment Securities 4.8 1,000,000.00 1,000,000.00
Current Tax Assets 49 41,567,989.89 31,093,613.50
Investment Property 410 -
Property and Equipment 411 39,122,990.91 39,633,962.20
Goodwill And Intangible Assets 412 163,853.24 349,172.38
Deferred Tax Assets 413 12,795,662.07 12,796,155.58
Other Assets 414 45,868,714.63 48,193,450.16
Total Assets 8,746,883,342.31 6,997,462,892.54
. As on As on
FEEBEDS AiDE 31st Ashad 2081 31st Ashadh 2080

Liabilities
Due to Bank And Financial Institutions 4.15
Due To Nepal Ratsra Bank 416
Derivative Financial Instrument 417 - -
Deposits from Customers 4.18 3,733,553,067.08 3,335,150,428.87
Borrowings 419 3,858,862,589.21 2,620,936,589.90
Current Tax Liabilities 49 - -
Provisions 4.20 10,174,005.00 54,005.00
Deferred Tax Liabilities 413 - -
Other Liabilities 4.21 128,725,362.96 123,616,744.85
Debt Securities Issued 422 - -
Subordinated Liabilities 4.23 - -
Total Liabilities 7,731,315,024.25 6,079,757,768.62
Equity
Share Capital 4.24 671,104,993.00 627,200,928.00
Share Premium - -
Retained Earnings 99,157,522.24 46,584,828.35
Reserves 4.25 245,305,802.82 243,919,367.07
Total Equity Attributable To Equity Holders 1,015,568,318.06 917,705,123.42
Non-Controlling Interest - -
Total Equity 1,015,568,318.06 917,705,123.42
Total Liabilities And Equity 8,746,883,342.31 6,997,462,892.54
Contingent Liabilities And Commitment 4.26
Net Assets Value Per Share 151.33 146.32

The accompanying notes are integral part of these financial statements.

As per our report of even date

Saurav Duwadi, CA
S.Duwadi & Associates
Chartered Accountants

Gyanendra Prasad Pande
Chairman

Uday Raj Khatiwada
Director

Tri Bikram Pandey
Director

Krishna Banjade
Director

" Niroj Prasad Poudel
Chief Financial Officer

Tej Datta Khakural
Director

Date: January 11, 2025
Place : Banepa, Kavre
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Samar Dhakal
Director

Hira Devi Bista
Director

Manoj Krishna Uprety
Chief Executive Officer
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SWAROJGAR LAGHUBITTA BITTIYA SANSTHA LIMITED
Statement of Profit or Loss
For the Year Ended 31st Ashad 2081 (15th July 2024)

Figures in NPR
Particulars Note 2080.081 2079.080

Interest Income 4.27 1,096,935,589.33 1,034,342,409.10
Interest Expense 4.28 671,278,977.13 669,095,935.98
Net Interest Income 425,656,612.20 365,246,473.12
Fees and Commission Income 4.29 84,357,591.81 68,182,185.83
Fees and Commission Expense 4.30 4,199,133.00 2,852,703.00
Net Fee and Commission Income 80,158,458.81 65,329,482.83
Net Interest, Fee and Commission Income 505,815,071.01 430,575,955.95
Net Trading Income 431 - -
Other Operating Income 4.32 2,239,976.03 2,973,820.48
Total Operating Income 508,055,047.04 433,549,776.43
Impairment Charge/(Reversal) for Loans and Other Losses 4.33 68,426,591.87 55,870,929.87
Net Operating Income 439,628,455.17 377,678,846.56
Operating Expense
Personnel Expenses 4,34 219,302,880.11 220,342,027.70
Other Operating Expenses 4.35 67,270,431.17 68,470,396.67
Depreciation And Amortisation 4.36 22,561,400.82 22,964,654.30
Operating Profit 130,493,743.07 65,901,767.89
Non Operating Income 437 43,648,074.08 51,931,733.05
Non Operating Expense 4.38 578,796.00 -
Profit Before Income Tax 173,563,021.15 117,833,500.94
Income Tax Expense 4.39 62,157,353.45 41,551,719.79

Current Tax 62,497,049.14 57,780,187.47

Deferred Tax (339,695.69) (16,228,467.68)
Profit For The Year 111,405,667.70 76,281,781.15
Profit Attributable To:
Equity Holders Of The Financial Institution 111,405,667.70 76,281,781.15

Non-Controlling Interest
Profit For The Year 111,405,667.70 76,281,781.15
Earnings Per Share (EPS)

Basic Earnings Per Share 16.60 12.16

Diluted Earnings Per Share 16.60 12.16

The accompanying notes are integral part of these financial statements.

Gyanendra Prasad Pande

Uday Raj Khatiwada

Tri Bikram Pandey

Krishna Banjade

As per our report of even date

Saurav Duwadi, CA

Chairman Director Director Director S.Duwadi & Associates
Chartered Accountants

TeJDattaKhakuraI ........... éamar Dhakal Hira Devi Bista Manoj Krishna Uprety Niroj Prasad Poudel
Director Director Director Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer

Date: January 11, 2025
Place : Banepa, Kavre
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SWAROJGAR LAGHUBITTA BITTIYA SANSTHA LIMITED
Statement of Distributable Profit or Loss
For the Year Ended 31st Ashad 2081 (15th July 2024)

As per NRB Regulation
Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Net Profit/(loss) as per Statement of Profit or Loss 111,405,667.70 76,281,781.15
Appropriation

a. General Reserve (22,281,133.54) (15,256,356.23)

b. Foreign Exchange Fluctuation fund - -

c. Capital Redemption Reserve - -

d. Corporate Social Responsibility Fund (1,114,056.68) (762,817.81)

e. Employees' Training Fund (330,256.50) (999,127.74)

f. Client Protection Fund (1,114,056.68) (762,817.81)

g. Other : Share Issue Expenses (445,694.00) -
Profit/(loss) before regulatory adjustment 86,120,470.30 58,500,661.56
Regulatory Adjustments:

a. Interest Receivable (-)/Previous Accrued Interest Received(+) 16,153,888.59 1,199,196.84

b. Short Loan Loss Provision in Accounts(-)/Reversal(+) -

c. Short Provision for Possible Losses on Investment(-)/Reversal(+) -

d. Short Provision for Possible Losses on Non-Banking Assets (-)/Reversal(+) -

e. Deferred Tax Assets Recognized(-)/Reversal(+) (339,695.69) (963,756.38)

f. Goodwill Recognized (-)/Impairment of Goodwill(+) -

g. Bargain Purchase Gain Recognized (-)/Reversal(+) -

h. Actuarial Loss Recognized (-)/Reversal(+) -

i. Others : Actuarial Gain of OLTEB Recognized (-)/Reversal(+) (3,247,990.83) (4,837,899.15)
Net Profit/(loss) for the Year End available for Distribution 98,686,672.37 53,898,202.87
Opening Retained Earning 46,584,828.35 111,069,810.48
Adjustment(+/-)

Corporate Social Responsibility Expense during the year 175,706.00 671,349.00

Transfer to Regulatory Reserve as adjustment (74,879.22)

Distribution:

Bonus Share Issued (43,904,065.00) (113,101,807.00)

Cash Dividend Paid (2,310,740.26) (5,952,727.00)
Total Distributable Profit/(Loss) as on Year End Date 99,157,522.24 46,584,828.35
Annualized Distributable Profit/Loss per Share 14.78 7.43

Gyanendra Prasad Pande

Uday Raj Khatiwada

Tri Bikram Pandey

Krishna Banjade

Saurav Duwadi, CA

Chairman Director Director Director S.Duwadi & Associates
Chartered Accountants

Tej Datta Khakural Samar Dhakal Hira Devi Bista Manoj Krishna Uprety Niroj Prasad Poudel
Director Director Director Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer

Date: January 11, 2025
Place : Banepa, Kavre
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SWAROJGAR LAGHUBITTA BITTIYA SANSTHA LIMITED
Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the Year Ended 31st Ashad 2081 (15th July 2024)

Particulars

2080.081

2079.080

Profit For The Year

11,405,667.70

76,281,781.15

Other Comprehensive Income, Net Of Income Tax

a) ltems that will not be reclassified to Profit or Loss

Gains / (Losses) from investment in equity instruments measured at fair value
Gains / (Losses) on revaluation

Actuarial Gains / (Losses) on defined benefit plans 1,133,964.00 (911,373.00)
Income tax relating to above items (340,189.20) 273,411.90
Net other Comprehensive Income that will not be reclassified to Profit or Loss 793,774.80 (637,961.10)
b) Items that are or may be reclassified to Profit or Loss

Gains/(losses) on cash flow hedge -

Exchange gains/(losses) (arising from translating financial assets of foreign operation) -

Income tax relating to above items -

Reclassify to Profit or Loss -

Net other Comprehensive Income that are or may be reclassified to Profit or Loss - -
Other Comprehensive income for the year, net of income tax 793,774.80 (637,961.10)
Total Comprehensive income for the year 112,199,442.50 75,643,820.05
Total Comprehensive income attributable to:

Equity Shareholder Of The Bank 112,199,442.50 75,643,820.05
Non Controlling Interest

Total Comprehensive Income For The Period 112,199,442.50 75,643,820.05

16" Annual Report-2080/081 »

The accompanying notes are integral part of these financial statements.

Gyanendra Prasad Pande

Uday Raj Khatiwada

Tri Bikram Pandey

Chairman Director Director
Te]DattaKhakural ............ Samar Dhakal leaDe V|B|sta .......
Director Director Director

Date: January 11, 2025
Place : Banepa, Kavre

Krishna Banjade

Director

Manoj Krishna

Chief Executive Officer

As per our report of even date

Saurav Duwadi, CA

S.Duwadi & Associates
Chartered Accountants

Uprety
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SWAROJGAR LAGHUBITTA BITTIYA SANSTHA LIMITED
Statement of Cash Flows
For the Year Ended 31st Ashad 2081 (15th July 2024)

Figures in NPR

Particulars

2080.081

2079.080

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Interest received

Fees and other income received

Dividend received

Receipts from other operating activities

Interest paid

Commission and fees paid

Cash payment to employees

Other expense paid

1,069,836,113.28
128,005,665.89

(303,565,617.00)
(4,199,133.00)
(215,905,953.80)
(67,849,227.17)

1,026,211,151.33
120,113,918.88

(283,126,050.02)
(2,852,703.00)
(215,142,373.70)
(68,470,396.67)

Operating cash flows before changes in operating assets and liabilities

606,321,848.20

576,733,546.82

(Increase)/Decrease in operating assets

Due from Nepal Rastra Bank

Placement with Bank and Financial Institutions
Other trading assets

Loans and advance to bank and financial institutions
Loans and advances to customers

Other assets

(3,304,604.36)

(1,588,459,159.76)
(7,309,177.90)

1,115,394.14

713,064,906.39
(1,740,289.14)

Increase/(Decrease) in operating liabilities
Due to bank and financial institutions

Due to Nepal Rastra Bank

Deposit from customers

Borrowings

Other liabilities

398,402,638.21
1,237,925,999.31
13,336,540.09

180,305,550.59
(881,044,201.99)
(42,611,597.04)

Net cash flow from operating activities before tax paid

656,914,083.79

545,823,309.77

Income taxes paid

(72,971,425.53)

(60,980,852.49)

Net cash flow from operating activities

583,942,658.26

484,842,457.28

CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of investment securities

Receipts from sale of investment securities
Purchase of property and equipment

Receipt from the sale of property and equipment
Purchase of intangible assets

Receipt from the sale of intangible assets
Purchase of investment properties

Receipt from the sale of investment properties
Interest received

Dividend received

(6,537,418.04)

0.02

2,838,491.25

(4,138,233.50)
147,500.00

4,381,148.04

Net cash used in investing activities

(3,698,926.77)

390,414.54

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Receipt from issue of shares

Repayment of debt securities

Reciepts from issue of subordinated liabilities
Repayment of subordinated liabilities

Dividends paid

Interest paid

Other recepit/payment

(2,310,740.26)
(363,892,083.51)
(29,791,471.40)

(5,952,727.00)
(381,200,125.93)
(32,623,237.52)

Net cash from financing activities

(395,994,295.17)

(419,776,090.45)

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the period
Effect of exchange rate fluctuations on cash and cash equivalents held

184,249,436.32
301,887,182.35

65,456,781.37
236,430,400.21

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period

486,136,618.17

301,887,182.35

The accompanying notes are integral part of these financial statements.

As per our report of even date

Uday Raj Khatiwada Tri Bikram Pandey Krishna Banjade Saurav Duwadi,
Director Director Director S.Duwadi & Associates
Chartered Accountants
*TejDattaKhakual SamarDhakal HraDeviBista | Manoj Krishna Uprety Niroj Prasad Poudel
Director Director Director Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer

Date: January 11, 2025
Place : Banepa, Kavre
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Swarojgar Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited

Notes to Financial Statements
For the year ended on 31st Ashad 2081

1 Reporting entity
Swarojgar Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited ("The Microfinance") is domiciled and incorporated in Nepal under
Company Act 2063 on Shrawan 08, 2066. The Microfinance got license from Nepal Rastra Bank on Mansir 16, 2066
having 3 district working area and started it's operation on Poush 01, 2066. Later, on Poush 19, 2074, The Microfiance
got license to operate at National Level from Nepal Rastra Bank. The Microfinance has its registered Central Office at
Banepa Municipality 5, Kavre, Nepal. The Microfinance is operating as a D Class Licensed financial institution as per
Bank and Financial Institution Act, 2073. The Microfinance is a Public Company having its share listed on Nepal
Stock Exchange with trading code "SLBBL" after issuing its share to the general public in FY 2069.070.
During the period, the Microfinance has provided its services through 91 total branch offices located in seven province
by the end of FY 2080.081. With the aim of providing access to financial services of the poor and marginalized women
members, promoting a culture of saving, encouraging to generate income, supporting micro-enterprises development
and providing social security services to its member the Microfinance is serving 125,884 households throughout its 91
branches till the end of this fiscal year.
Being 'D' class licensed institution from Nepal Rastra Bank, major activities of the Microfinance include deprived
sector lending under group guarantee without collateral in order to enhance economic and social factors of the
member. Also, the microfinance provides microenterprise loan (Collateral Loan) to its member within the limit as
prescribed by Nepal Rastra Bank from time to time. The microfinance also provides different types of skillfull and
income generating training to members in time to time basis. The major sources of fund for the microfinance are
saving collection of members along with the lending by various Banks and Financial Institutions and Equity holder's
Fund.

2 Basis of Preparation

2.1 Statementof Compliance
The Financial statements of the Microfinance have been prepared in accordance with the requirements by Nepal
Financial Reporting Standard (NFRS) as issued by Accounting Standard Board (ASB) Nepal and pronounced
by The Institute of Chartered Accountants of Nepal (ICAN) and in a format issued by Nepal Rastra Bank in the
Unified Directives, 2079 issued for Microfinance. The Financial Statement comprise of :

a.  Statement of Financial Position stating the financial position of the Microfinance as at the end of reporting
period,

b.  Statement of Profit or Loss and Statement of Other Comprehensive Income stating the financial performance of
the Microfinance for the reported period,

c.  Statement of Comprehensive Income for the reported period

. Statement of Cash Flow stating the ability of the Microfinance to generate Cash and Cash Equivalents,

e.  Statement of Changes in Equity stating all the changes in Equity of the Microfinance during the reporting
period, and

f. Notes to the Financial Statements comprising summary of Principal Accounting Policies and Explanatory Notes
that are of significant importance to the users of the Financial Statements.

2.1.1 Use of Carve-out
ICAN has provided carve-out on specific areas for alternative treatment of the items of financial statements
required as per NFRS. Based on such, the Microfinance has used the following carve outs for preparation and
presentation of the financial statements in line with NFRS.

a) Impairment Loss on Loans and Advances
"As per NFRS 9 Financial Instruments read together with carve-outs issued by ICAN for alternative treatment,
An entity shall assess at the end of each reporting period whether there is any objective evidence that a financial
asset or group of financial assets measured at amortised cost is impaired. If any such evidence exists, the entity
determine the amount of any impairment loss unless the entity is a bank or financial institution registered as per
Bank and Financial institution Act 2073. Such entities shall measure impairment loss on loan and advances as
the higher or amount derived as per the norms prescribed by Nepal Rastra Bank for loan loss provision and
amount determined as per NFRS 9. The entity shall disclose the impairment loss as per this carve-out and
amount of impairment loss determined. The Microfinance has calculated the impairment loss as per NFRS 9 but
has recognised the loan loss provision as per the norms of Nepal Rastra Bank using this carve-out."

16" Annual Report-2080/081 » ‘1§3ﬁ' e gfeag=-3050 /059 :@—
A —




“JA I JALEDT SMENR, JSDT AT TAFIMR”

b)  Effective Interest Rate

"As per NFRS 9 read together with carve out issued by ICAN for alternative treatment, the Effective interest rate
is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts through the expected life of the
financial asset or financial liability to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset or to the amortised cost of a
financial liability. When calculating the effective interest rate, an entity shall estimate the expected cash flows
by considering all the contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example, prepayment, extension, call,
and similar options) but shall not consider the expected credit losses. The calculation includes all fees and points
paid or received unless it is immaterial or impracticable to determine reliably, between parties to the contract
that are an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs, and all other premiums or discounts.
There is a presumption that the cash flows and the expected life of a group of similar financial instruments can be
estimated reliably. However, in those rare cases when it is not possible to reliably estimate the cash flows or the
expected life of a financial instrument (or group of financial instruments), the entity shall use the contractual
cash flows over the full contractual term of the financial instrument (or group of financial instruments).The
Microfinance has used the carve out and has not included the service charges in the calculation of effective
interest rate, considering the impact would not have been materially different if the Microfinance had done
otherwise."

2.2 Reporting Period and Approval of Financial Statements

2.2.1 Reporting Period
The reporting period for this financial statements is the period ending on 31st Ashad 2081. Financial
information of following period/dates are provided on the financial statements.

1.  Comparative NFRS financial statements (financial statements as on and for the periods ended on 31st Ashad
2081)

2. NFRS financial statements for current period (financial statements as on and for the period ended on 3 1st Ashad
2081)

2.2.2 Approval of Financial Statements

®  The Board of Directors acknowledges the responsibility for the preparation and presentation of Financial
Statements as per the provision of The Companies Act, 2074 (First Amendment).

®  The financial statements were authorised for issue by the Board of Directors vide its resolution dated 2081.09.27
and recommended for approval in its 1 6th Annual General Meeting by Shareholders.

2.3 Functional and Presentation Currency
The financial statements are presented in Nepalese Rupee (NPR) , which is also the functional currency of
Microfinance. Figures are rounded off to nearest Rupee, accordingly, minor rounding off error may exist.

2.4 Useof Estimates, Assumptions and Judgments
The Microfinance, under NFRS, is required to apply accounting policies to most appropriately suit its
circumstances and operating environment. Further, the microfinance is required to make judgement in respect
of items where the choice of specific policy, accounting estimate, or assumption to be followed could materially
affect the financial statements. This may later be determined that a different choice could have been more
appropriate.
Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis and the effect of revisions to the
accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimates are revised and in any future periods
affected. The most significant uses of judgement and estimates are as follows:

a)  Going Concern
The management of the microfinance has assessed the entity's ability to continue as a going concern and is
satisfied that it has the resources to continue in business for the foreseeable future. Furthermore, management is
not aware of any material uncertanities that may cast significant doubts on the entity's ability to continue as a
going concern. Therefore, the financial statements continue to be prepared on going concern basis.

b)  Fair Value of Financial Instruments
Where the fair value of the financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the statement of financial position
can not be derived from active markets, they are determined using judgements that may, among other things,
include considerations of liquidity and model inputs such as volatility for longer dated derivatives and discount
rates, prepayment rates, default rates assumptions for the assets backed securities.

¢) Impairmentlosses on Loans and Advances
As per the carve-out approved by the ICAN, Banks and Financial Institutions shall measure impairment losses
on loans and advances as the higher of the amount derived as per rule-based norms prescribed by NRB and the
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amount determined by as per paragraph-5 of NFRS 9, with proper disclosure of the same. Accordingly, the
microfinance has assessed the impairment loss under both norms and impairment provided in the financial
statements is the impairment under norms prescribed by NRB with separate disclosure of impairment calculated
under NFRS 9.

d) Taxation Matters
The microfinance is subject to Income Tax. Significant judgements were required to determine the total
provision for current and deferred taxes pending the issuance of tax guidelines on treatment of adoption of
NFRS in the financial statements and the taxable profit for the purpose of imposition of taxes. Uncertainities
exist, with respect to the interpretation of the applicability of tax law, at the time of the preparation of these
financial statements.
The Microfinance has recognized the assets ad liabilities for current, deferred and other taxes based on the
estimates of whether additional taxes will be due. Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different from
the amount initially recorded, such differences shall impact the income of that year.

e)  Deferred Tax
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized in respect of temporary differences in tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amount in the financial statements. Deferred tax income is determined using tax
rate applicable to the microfinance as at the reposting date which is expected to apply when the related deferred
tax income assets is realized or the deferred income tax liability is settled. Deferred tax assets are recognized
where it is probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the temporary differences can be
utilized.

f) Defined Benefit Plans
The microfinance has recognized gratuity and accumulated leave encashment as defined benefit plan. The cost
of defined benefit plan is determined using actuarial valuation by an actuary. The actuarial valuation requires
making assumptions about discount rates, Salary increment, and mortality rates, among other things. Due to
long term nature of these plans, such estimates are subject to significant uncertainties. Assumptions Used for the
valuations is disclosed in Note: 4.21.7.

g)  Valuation of Lease Liabilities
The application of NFRS 16 requires the microfinance to make judgements that affects the valuation of lease
liabilities and valuation of right to use assets. These include identifying contracts falling within the scope of
NFRS 16, assessing the contract terms and determining the interest rates for discounting of future cash flows.
The lease term determined by the microfinance generally comprise of non-cancellable period of lease contracts,
periods covered by an option, to extend the lease if the microfinance is reasonably certain to exercise that option
and periods covered by an option to determine the lease if the microfinance is reasonable certain not to exercise
that option. The same term is applied as economic useful life of right to use.

h) Materiality and Aggregation
Each material class of similar items is presented separately in the financial statements. Items of dissimilar nature
or function are presented separately, unless they are immaterial as permitted by the Nepal Accounting
Standards-NAS-1 on "Presentation of Financial Statements". Notes to the Financial Statements are presented in
a systematic manner which ensures the understandability and comparability of Financial Statements of the
Microfinance. Understandability of the Financial Statements is not compromised by obscuring material
information with immaterial information or by aggregating material items that have different nature or
functions.

2.5 Changesin Accounting Policies
Accounting Policies adopted by the management of the Microfinance has been applied consistently to all the
years presented except otherwise the changes in the accounting policies has been disclosed separately.

2.6 New Statndard issued but not yet effective
There have been amendments to the Standards issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Nepal
(ICAN) and applicability of the new Standards have been notified for IFRS. But the amendments and new
standards become applicable only when ICAN pronounces them.
The Microfinance has availed the Carve-outs on NFRS-9 Financial Instruments dated 2nd Shrawan 2079. The
quantitative and qualitative impact of the same have been disclosed as applicable.

2.7 New Standards and Interpretation not Adopted

Financial statements of the Microfinance have been prepared in accordance with Nepal Financial Reporting
Standards (NFRS) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Nepal (ICAN) to the extent applicable.
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2.8 Discounting

The Non-current Assets and Liabilities are discounted whenever the discounting is material and if required by
the NFRS.

2.9 Standalone Financial Statements
The presented financial statements is the separate financial statements of the Microfinance. The Microfinance
does not have subsidiary, accordingly, preparation of consolidated financial statements as per NFRS 10 is not
required.

2.10 Offsetting
Assets and Liabilities, Income and Expenses are reported separately and no assets and liabilities, or income and
expense are offset unless required or permitted by NFRS.

2.11 Comparative Information
Comparative information is provided in narrative and descriptive nature, if it is relevant to understand the
current period’s financial statement and reclassified whenever necessary to conform to current year
presentation.
Previous year’s figures have been regrouped/reclassified wherever necessary to conform with the current year’s
classification/disclosures.

3 Significant Accounting Policies
The principal accounting policies applied by the Microfinance in the preparation and presentation of these Financial
Statements are presented below. These policies has been consistently applied to all the years presented unless
otherwise stated.

3.1 Basis of Measurement
The financial statement of the microfinance has been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the following
material items in the statement of financial position:

a.  Liabilities for Defined Benefit Obligations are recognized at the present value of the Defined Benefit
Obligations less the fair value of the plan asset.

b.  Lease liabilities are recognized, representing the present value of the obligation to make lease payments, while
Right-of-Use (RoU) assets are recognized based on the right to use the underlying leased asset, in accordance
with the requirements of NFRS 16.

c.  Provision forleave liability is calculated on the basis of present value of obligation as per actuarial report.

3.2 Cashand cash equivalent
Cash and Cash Equivalents include cash in hand, balances with banks & Financial Institutions, money at call and
at short notice and Fixed Deposits having original maturity less than three months. These are subject to
insignificant risk of changes in their fair values and are used by the Microfinace in the management of short term
commitments.
Details of cash and cash equivalents are given in Note 4.1 to the Financial Statements.

3.3 Financial assets and financial liabilities

Financial assets are any assets that is cash, equity instrument of another entity or any contractual right to receive cash

or financial assets of another entity.

Financial liability is any liability with contractual obligation to deliver cash or other financial assets to another entity.

3.3.1 Recognition
Microfinance recognizes Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities when it becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. All Financial Assets and Liabilities are measured at Fair Value on initial
recognition. Transaction costs in relation to Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities, other than those carried at
Fair value through Profit or Loss (FVTPL), are added to the Fair Value on initial recognition. Transaction costs
in relation to Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities which are carried at Fair Value through Profit or Loss
(FVTPL) are charged to the Statement of Profit or Loss.

3.3.2 Classification

([ ] Financial Assets
[ ) Financial Liabilities
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1. Financial Assets
The Microfinance classifies the Financial Assets as subsequently measured at Amortized Cost or Fair Value on
the basis of the Microfinance's business model for managing the Financial Assets and the contractual cash flow
characteristics of the Financial Assets. The two classes of Financial Assets are as follows:
® Financial Assets measured at Amortized Cost
® Financial Assets measured Fair Value
I) Financial Assets measured at Amortized Cost
The Microfinance classifies a Financial Assets measured at Amortized Cost if both of the following
conditions are met:
® The assets is held within a business model whose objectives is to hold assets in order to collect contractual
cash flows, and
® The contractual terms of the Financial Asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.
ii) Financial Assets measured at Fair Value
Financial Assets other than those measured at Amortized Cost are measured at Fair Value. Financial
Assets measured at Fair Value are further classified into two categories as below:
® Financial Assets at Fair Value through Profit or Loss, and
® Financial Assets at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income.
Financial Assets at Fair Value through Profit or Loss
Financial Assets are classified as Fair Value through Profit or Loss (FVTPL), if they are held for trading or
are designated at Fair Value through Profit or Loss. Upon initial recognition, transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition are recognized in Profit or Loss as incurred. Such assets are subsequently
measured at Fair Value and changes in Fair Value are recognized in Statement of Profit or Loss.
Financial Assets at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income
Investment in an equity instrument that is not held for trading and at initial recognition, the Microfinance
makes an irrevocable election that the subsequent changes in Fair Value of the instrument is to be
recognized in Other Comprehensive Income are classified as Financial Assets at Fair Value through Other
Comprehensive Income. Such assets are subsequently measured at Fair Value and changes in Fair Value
arerecognized in Other Comprehensive Income.
2. Financial Liabilities
Financial Liabilities are classified as followings:
® Financial Liabilities at Fair Value through Profit or Loss, and
® Financial Liabilities measuered at Amortized Cost.
i) Financial Liabilities at Fair Value through Profit or Loss
Financial Liabilities are classified as Fair Value through Profit or Loss if they are held for trading or are
derivative transactions. Upon initial recognition, transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition are recognized in the Statement of Profit or Loss as incurred. Subsequent changes in Fair
Value are recognized in Profit or Loss.
ii) Financial Liabilities measured at Amortized Cost
All financial Liabilities other than measured at Fair Value through Profit or Loss are classified as
subsequently measured at Amortized Cost using Effective Interest Method.

3.3.3 Measurement
Initial Measurement
A Financial Asset or Financial Liability is measured initially at Fair Value plus or minus, for an item not at Fair
Value through Profit or Loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable to its acquisition or issue.
Transaction cost in relation to Financial Asset and Liability at Fair Value through Profit or Loss are recognized in
Statement of Profit or Loss.
Subsequent Measurement
A Financial Asset or Financial Liability is subsequently measured either at Fair Value or at Amortized Cost
based on the classification of the Financial Asset or Financial Liability. Financial Asset or Liability classified as
measured at Amortized Cost is subsequently measured at Amortized Cost using Effective Interest Rate method.
The Amortized Cost of Financial Asset or Financial Liability is the amount at which the Financial Asset or
Financial Liability is measured at initial recognition minus principal repayments, plus or minus the cumulative
amortization using the Effective Interest Rate method of any difference between that initial amount and the
maturity amount, and minus any reduction for impairment or uncollectible.
Financial Instruments classified at Fair Value are subsequently measured at Fair Value. The subsequent changes
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in Fair Value of Instruments at Fair Value through Profit or Loss are recognized in Statement of Profit or Loss
whereas of Financial Asset at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income are recognized in Other
Comprehensive Income.

3.3.4 De-recognition

Derecognition of Financial Assets

The Microfinance derecognizes a Financial Asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the
Financial Asset expires, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the Financial Asset are transferred or in which the
Microfinance neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and it does not
retain control of the Financial Asset.

Any interest in such transferred Financial Assets that qualify for derecognition that is created or retained by the
Microfinance is recognized as a separate asset or liability. On derecognition of a Financial Asset, the difference
between the carrying amount of the asset (or the carrying amount allocated to the portion of the asset
transferred), and the sum of:

® The consideration received (including any new asset obtained less any new liability assumed), and
) Any cumulative gain or loss that had been recognized in Other Comprehensive Income is recognized in
Profitor Loss.

In transactions in which the Microfinance neither retains nor transfers substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of a Financial Asset and it retains cotrol over the asset, the Microfinace continues to
recognize the asset to the extent of its continuing involvement, determined by the extent to which it is
exposed to changes in the value of the transferred asset.
Derecognition of Financial Liabilities

A Financial Liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or
expired. Where an existing Financial Liability is replaced by another from the same lender on
substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are subsequently modified, such an
exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new
liability. The difference between the carrying value of the original Financial Liability and the
consideration paid is recognized in Statement of Profit or Loss.

3.3.5 Determination of fair value
Fair Value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability be settled, between knowledgeable,
willing parties in an arm's length transaction on the measurement date. The Fair Value of a liability reflects its
non-performance risk. The Fair Values are determined according to the following hierarchy:
Level 1 : Fair Value measurements are those derived from unadjusted quoted prices are in active markets for
identical assets of liability.
Level 2 : Valuations are those with quoted prices for similar instruments in active markets or quoted prices for
identical or similar instruments in inactive markets and financial instruments valued using models where all
significant inputs are observable.
Level 3 : Portfolios are those where at least one input, which could have a significant effects on the instrument's
valuation, is not based on observable market data.
Investment in Unquoted Equity Instruments are carried at cost as the market price of such shares could not be
ascertained with certainty at the reporting date.

3.3.6 Impairment

At each reporting date the Microfinance assesses whether there is any indication that an asset may have been
impaired. If such indication exists, the recoverable amount is determined. A Financial Asset or a group of
Financial Asset is impaired and impairment losses are incurred if, and only if, there is objective evidence of
impairment as a result of the asset (a loss event), and that loss event (or events) has an impact on the estimated
future cash flows of the financial asset or group of Financial Asset that can be reliably estimated.

The management's judgement is extensively used in the estimation of the amount and timing of future cashflows
when determining the impairment loss. These estimates are based on assumptions about a number of factors and
hence actual results may differ, resulting in future changes to the provision made.

The individual impairment provision applies to financial assets evaluated individually for impairment and is
based on Management’s best estimate of the present value of the future cash flows that are expected to be
received. In estimating these cash flows, Management makes judgments about a number of factors including a
borrower’s financial situation and the net realizable value of any underlying collateral. Each impaired asset is
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assessed on its merits to estimate the recoverable amount of cash flows. A collective impairment provision is
established for:
® Groups of homogeneous loans and advances and investment securities which are held to maturity, that are not
considered individually significant; and
® Groups of assets that are individually significant but that were not found to be individually impaired.
The collective impairment is carried out using statistical modelling such as historical trends of the probability of
defaults, timings of recoveries, and current economic and market conditions which may warrant the loss being
greater than the suggested by the historical trends.
For the purpose of collective assessment of impairment, Microfinance has categorized assets into the following
broad products as follows:
. General Loan/Business Loan (Group Basel)
. Business Growth Loan (Group Basel)
. Micro Enterprises Loan (Collateral)
. Disaster Loan (Group Basel)
. Alternative Energy Loan (Group Basel)
. Center Home Loan (Group Basel)
. Swarojgar Loan (Group Basel)
. Emergency Loan (Group Basel)
. Covid-19 Easy Loan (Group Basel)

Loan Loss Provision as per Unified Directives to Microfinance

Loan loss provisioning respect of Performing and Non-performing loans and advances are based on management's
assessment of the degree of impairment of the loans and advances, subject to the minimum provisions prescribed in
Unified Directives 2079 issued by NRB for Microfinance. Provision is made for possible losses as follows:

Rate Categories Loans & Advances Provision
Uninsured Insured Total

A. Performing Loan & Advances 2,147,059.00 7,766,004,535.50 | 7,768,151,594.50 28,309,392.76
1.30% | Pass 505,386.00 7,443,712,086.96 | 7,444,217,472.96 24,198,650.18
5% Restructure 1,641,673.00 303,424,523.71 305,066,196.71 3,874,893.34
5% Watch List - 18,867,924.83 18,867,924.83 235,849.24
B. Non-Performing Loan & Advances 72,562,170.63 385,060,573.87 457,622,744.50 | 151,595,554.35
25% | Substandard - 15,494,982.53 15,494,982.53 968,436.65
50% | Doubtfull 143,945.00 114,035,846.64 114,179,791.64 14,326,455.35
100% | Bad 72,418,225.63 255,529,744.70 327,947,970.33 | 136,300,662.35
Sub Total (A+B) 74,709,229.63 8,151,065,109.37 | 8,225,774,339.00 | 179,904,947.11
Additional - - - 53,017,230.59
Total 74,709,229.63 8,151,065,109.37 | 8,225,774,339.00 | 232,922,177.70

Insured Loans and advances represents the Loans and advances insured with Deposit & Credit Guarantee Fund
(DCGF) for which only 25% of applied rate is applicable for provision amount.

Policies opted for Impairment Charge

The Microfinance opts carveout issued by ICAN for measurement of impairment of Loans and Advances. Individual
and Collective Impairment calculated as per NFRS is compared with the Loan Loss Provision calculated as per
Unified Directives, 2079 issued for microfinance, and higher of the amount derived from these measures is taken as
Impairment charge for Loans and Advances.

Comparision of Impairment as per NFRS and NRB :

Particulars As on 31st Ashad 2081
LLP as per NRB Directives 232,922,177.70
Impairment as per NFRS 188,766,889.51
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3.3.7 Amortized cost measurement
The 'amortised cost' of a financial asset and financial liability is the amount at which the financial asset or
financial liability is measured at initial recognition, minus principal repayments, plus or minus the cumulative
amortisation using the effective interest method of any difference between initial amount recognised and the
maturity amount minus any reduction for impairment.

3.3.8 Effective Interest Method
"Effective Interest Method is the method that is used in the calculation of the amortised cost of a financial asset
or a financial liability and in the allocation and recognition of the interest revenue or interest expense in profit or
loss over the relevant period.Effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
payments or receipts through the expected life of the financial asset or financial liability to the gross carrying
amount of a financial asset or to the amortised cost of a financial liability."

3.4 Trading assets

Financial Assets are classified as trading assets (held for trading) if they have been acquired principally for the purpose
of'selling in the near term, or form part of a portfolio of identified Financial Instruments that are managed together and
for which there is evidence of a recent pattern of short- term profit taking. They are recognized on trade date, when the
Microfinance enters into contractual arrangements with counterparties, and are normally derecognized when sold.
They are initially measured at Fair Value, with transaction costs taken to Profit or Loss. Subsequent changes in their
Fair Values are recognized in Profit or Loss in ‘Net Trading Income’. However, the Microfinance does not have such
assets to be recognized as trading assets as on Ashadh end 2081.

3.5 Property and Equipment
Non-financial tangible assets that are held for providing service to customers and for administrative use of the
Microfinance are classified as Property and Equipment.
Recognition
Property and Equipment are tangible items that are held for use in the production or supply of services or for
administrative purposes and are expected to be used during more than one accounting period. The Microfinance
applies the requirement of the Nepal Accounting Standard-16 (Property, Plant and Equipment) in accounting for these
assets. Property and Equipments are recognized if it is probable that the future economic benefits associated with the
asset will flow to the entity and the cost of the asset can be reliably measured.
Measurement
An item of property and equipment that qualifies for recognition as an asset is initially measured at its cost. Cost
includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset and cost incurred subsequently to add to,
replace part of an item of property and equipment.
Subsequent Measurement
The Microfinance has opted cost model for the subsequent measurement of'its Property and Equipments. Property and
Equipment is stated at incurred cost (excluding the cost of day-to-day servicing) less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment. Such cost includes the cost of replacing part of the equipment when that cost is incurred, if
the recognition criteria are met.
Subsequent Cost
The subsequent cost of replacing a component of an item of Property and Equipment is recognized in the carrying
amount of the item, if it is probable that the future economic benefits embodied within that part will flow to the
Microfinance and it can be reliably measured. The cost of the day to day servicing of property and equipment are
charged to the Statement of Profit or Loss as incurred.
Derecognition
The carrying amount of an item of Property and Equipment is derecognized on disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected from its use. The gain or loss arising from de-recognition of an item of property and equipment is
included in the Statement of Profit or Loss when the item is derecognized.
Assets not capitalized
Items of property and equipment with original cost up to Rs. 2,000 are directly accounted as expenses.
Capital Work in Progress
These are expenses of capital nature directly incurred in the construction of buildings, major development works, or
awaiting capitalization. Capital Work in Progress would be transferred to the relevant assets when it is available for
use, i.e. when it is in the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner inteneded by
management. Capital work in progress is stated at cost less any accumulated impairment losses.
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Residual Value

The Microfinance has assessed the salvage value of all property and equipment considering the expected realizable
value on the end of life of such assets.

Depreciation

Depreciation is charged upon the assets is available for use and does not cease until the asset is disposed off, classified
as held for sale or ceases to generate economic benefits.

Freehold land is not depreciated. Depreciation on assets under construction does not commence until they are
complete and ready for intended use. Depreciation is provided on all other items of property and equipment so as to
write-off their carrying value over the expected useful economic lives.

Items of property and equipment are depreciated on Written Down Value Method over their useful life.

Management of the Microfinance has assessed useful life and salvage value of property and equipment, as follows:

Items WDYV Rate

Building 5%

Leasehold Properties Lease period

Vehicle 20%

Office Equipment, Furniture & Fixture, Computer & Accessories 25%

Other Assets 15%

Depreciation for Income Tax purpose is calculated separately at the rate and manner prescribed by the Income Tax Act,
2058.

3.6 Goodwill and Intangible assets
Recognition
Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the fair values of the identifiable net assets acquired in Business
Combination is recognized as Goodwill. Whereas, an identifiable non-monetery asset without physical substance,
held for use in the production or supply of the services of the Microfinance for administrative purpose is recognized as
an Intangible Asset.
Goodwill and Intangible Assets are recognized in the books of account if it is probable that the future economic
benefits that are attributable to the asset will flow to the entity and the cost of the asset can be measured reliably. These
assets are initially measured at costs.
Subsequent Expenditure
Expenses incurred on an Intangible Asset are capitalized only when it its probable that this expense will enable the
asset to generate future economic benefits in excess of its originally assessed standard of performance and this
expense can be measured and attributed to the asset reliably. All other expense is expenses as incurred.
Subsequent Measurement
Goodwill and Intangible Assets are subsequently measured at its Cost less Accumulated Impairment Charges/
Accumulated Amortization.
Amortization of Intangible Asset
Intangible Assets, except Goodwill, are amortized on Straight Line basis with the rate set, dividing the cost of the asset.
Management estimates the life of an intangible asset of Five years from the date of its put to use.
De-recognition of an Intangible Asset
The carrying amount of an item of Intangible Asset is derecognized on disposal or when no future economic benefits
are expected from its use. The gain/loss arising on derecognition of an item of Intangible Assets is recognized in the
Statement of Profit or Loss when the item is derecognized.

3.7 InvestmentProperty
Investment property is land and building held either to earn rental income or for capital appreciation or for both but not
for sale in the ordinary course of business, use in the supply of services or for administrative purpose.

3.8 Income tax
As per Nepal Accounting Standard-12 (Income Taxes), tax expense is the aggregate amount included in the
determination of Profit or Loss for the period in respect of current and deferred taxation.
Income Tax Expense is recognized in the Statement of Profit or Loss, except to the extent it relates to items recognized
directly in Equity or Other Comprehensive Income. The management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax
returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes
provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to tax authorities.
Tax Expense comprises Current Tax and Deferred Tax.
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Current Tax

Current Tax Assets and Liabilities consists of amounts expected to be recovered from or paid to Inland Revenue
Department in respect of Current Year, using the tax rates and tax laws enacted or substantively enacted on the
reporting date and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of prior years. Income tax rate applicable for Microfinance
is 30% (previous year rate was 30%)

Current Tax Calculation as per Income Tax Act, 2058

Particulars Amounts (NPR.)
Profit as per NFRS (Before Staff Bonus Provision) 192,847,801.28
Less: Staff Bonus Provision 19,284,780.13
Profit as per NFRS (After Staff Bonus Provision) 173,563,021.15
Add:
Inadmissible Expenses as per Income tax Act, 2058
1 | Depreciation as per Accounting System 22,561,400.82
2 | Staff Gratuity Provision 232,731.00
3 | Staff Leave Provision 2,068,973.00
4 | Interest Cost on Employee Benefit Obligations 2,789,153.00
5 | Interest Cost on Lease Liabilities 3,821,276.62
6 | Fines and Penalties 50,338.00
7 | Repair and Maintenance Expenses as per Accounting System 447,279.00
8 | Provision againts current assets 10,120,000.00
9 | Share Issue Expenses -
10| Corporate Social Responsibility Expense 175,706.00
42,266,857.44
Less:
Admissible Expenses as Per Income Tax Act, 2058
1 | Depreciation as per Section 19 7,469,897.95
2 | Write back of provision on other assets -
3 | Payment of staff Gratuity 172,186.00
4 | Leave encashment 1,521,744.69
5 | Dividend Income
6 | Lease Payments 17,765,963.80
7 | Gain on disposal of Depreciable Asset and Other Income not recognised in tax 2,239,976.03
8 | Repair and maintenance expenses as per section 16 337,766.04
9 | Less Loss Carried Forward 1,280,959.93
Total Taxable Income 185,041,384.15
Income Tax Liability 55,512,415.24
Advance Tax deposited 97,080,405.13
Income Tax Receivable 41,567,989.89
Deferred Tax

Deferred Tax is provided on Temporary Differences at the reporting date between the Tax Base of an asset and
liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reproting purposes. Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all
taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recognized to the exrtent that it is probable that the future
taxable profits will be available against which deductible temporary differences can be utilized. Carrying amount of
Deferred Tax Assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is probable that sufficient profit
will be available to allow the deferred tax assets to be utilized. Unrecognized deferred tax assets are reassessed at each
reporting date and are recognized to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profit will allow the
deferred tax asset to be recovered.
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Deferred Tax Assets and Liabilities are measured at the Tax Rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset
is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantially enacted at
the reporting date.

Current and Deferred Tax Assets and Liabilities are offset only to the extent that they relate to Income Tax imposed by
the same taxation authority.

Income tax on items of OCI

Income tax arising on the items of other comprehensive income is charged to statement of OCT itself.

3.9 Deposits, debt securities issued and subordinated liabilities
Deposits
The Microfinance collects deposits from its members. These transactions are recorded in the books of the accounts of
Microfinance, and the resulting balance is recorded as a liability for the Microfinance and represents the amount owed
to depositors. The balance is valued at amortized cost.
In accordance with Paragraph 9 of Nepal Accounting Standard 39 (NAS 39) on Financial Instruments: Recognition
and Measurement, the Effective Interest Rate is used for booking interest expense. When calculating the Effective
Interest Rate, the Microfinance considers all contractual terms of the financial instrument, including fees, points
received or paid, transaction costs, premiums, and discounts.
"A Carve-Out regarding the treatment of Effective Interest Rate was issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of Nepal (ICAN). According to this Carve-Out, when calculating the Effective Interest Rate, all transaction costs
should be considered unless they are immaterial or impracticable to calculate." In cases where it's considered
impracticable, a separate Effective Interest Rate may not be computed, as allowed by the Carve-Out issued by ICAN.
Debt Securities Issued
Debt Securities are initially measured at the fair value less incremental direct cost and subsequently at their amortized
cost using Effective Interest Rate method except where the microfinance designates liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss. However, the Microfinance does not have such Debt Securities as on Ashadh end 2081.
Subordinated Liabilties
These are the liabilities subordinated, in the event of winding up, to claims of depositors, debt securities issued, and
other creditors. It shall include redeemable preference shares, subordinated notes issued, borrowings, etc. During the
reporting period, the Microfinance did not have any such liabilities.

3.10 Provisions and Contingent Liabilities
Provision: Provision is a liability with uncertain timing and event. Provision is recognised if as a result of a past event,
the Microfinance has a present legal or constructive obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an
outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation. Provisions are determined by discounting the
expected future cash flows at the pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessment of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the liability. The unwinding of the discount is recognised as finance cost.
Contingent Liabilities: Contingent liabilities are i) possible obligations arising from past events whose existence will
be confirmed on happening or not happening or uncertain future events not wholly within the control of Microfinance,
or ii) a present obligation arising from past events but are not recognized because outflow of resources to settle may
notbe required or such amount can not be reliably estimated.
Contingent liabilities are separately disclosed in the financial statements.

3.11 Revenue Recognition

Revenue is the gross inflow of economic benefits during the period arising from the ordinary activities of the

Microfinance when those inflows result in an increase in equity, other than increases relating to contributions from

equity participants. Revenue is recognized only when the following specific recognition criteria are met, ensuring that

revenue is earned and realizable:

i)  Identification of the Transaction: A valid contract or arrangement exists between the Microfinance and the
customer, outlining the terms for the provision of goods or services.

ii) Transfer of Risks and Rewards: The significant risks and rewards associated with ownership of the goods or
services have been transferred to the customer. Typically, this means that the customer has gained control over
the asset.

iii) Reliable Measurement of Revenue: The amount of revenue can be measured reliably, ensuring there is
reasonable certainty regarding the value expected to be received in exchange for the goods or services provided.

iv) Probable Economic Benefits to the Microfinance: The Microfinance has a high degree of confidence that
economic benefits, such as cash or other assets, will flow to it. If uncertainties or conditions are attached to the
receipt of benefits, revenue recognition may be deferred.
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v)  Specific Criteria for Different Types of Revenue: Certain revenue types, such as interest, royalties, and
dividends, may have their own specific recognition criteria.

vi) No Outstanding Obligations: Revenue is recognized when the Microfinance has fully fulfilled its obligations
or services as per the contract and has the right to payment.

3.11.1 Interestincome
For all financial assets measured at amortized cost, interest bearing financial assets classified as Fair Value
through Profit or Loss, Interest income is recorded using the EIR. EIR is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments or receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, where
appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial asset or financial liability.
Further, Interest Income on Loan and Advances is recognized as per the Guideline on Recognition of Interest
Income, 2019 issued by NRB and Carve-Out issued by ICAN has been opted.
Carve-OutIssued by ICAN
As per the Carve-Out regarding the EIR rate treatment issued by ICAN, when calculating EIR, all these shall be
considered unless it is immaterial or impracticable to do so. Since all these transaction costs cannot be identified
separately and separate EIR computation for every customer seems impracticable, such transaction costs of all
previous years has not been considered when computing EIR. Due to impracticability, such relevant costs are
ignored, due to which EIR rate equals to the rate provided to customers and therefore, income recognized by
system on accrual basis has been considered as income once the recorded value of a financial asset or a group of
similar financial assets have been reduced due to impairment loss, interest income continues to be recognized
using the rate of interest used to discount the future cashflows for the purpose of measuring the impairment loss.

Guideline on Recognition of Interest Income, 2019 by NRB

a. criteria for determining loans on which interest no longer be recognized to the profit of loss account
but shall be suspended
Guideline issued by NRB on Income Recognition defines following criterias for determining loans on which
interest no longer be recognized to the profit or loss account but shall be suspended:

i. Loans where there is reasonable doubt about the ultimate collectability of principal or interest;

ii. Loans against which Individual Impairment as per NAS-39 of Life-time Impairment as per NFRS-9 has
been made;

iii. Loans where contractual payments of principal and/or interest are more than 3 months in arrear and where
the "netrealizable value" of security is insufficient to cover payment of principal and accrued interest;

iv. Loans where contractual payments of principal and/or interest are more than 12 months in arrear,
irrespective of the net realizable value of collateral;

v. Overdrafts and other short term facilities which have not been settled after the expiry of loan and even not
renewed within 3 months of the expiry, and where net realizable value of security is insufficient to cover
payment of principal and accrued interest;

vi. Overdrafts and other short term facilities which have not been settled after the expiry of loan and even not
renewed within 12 months of the expiry, irrespective of the net realizable value of collateral;

b. Criteria to cease the Accrual of Interest
Bank and Financial Institutions shall accrue the interest on loan although it has been decided to suspend the
recognition of income. However, BFIs shall cease to accrue interest on loan, in case where contractual
payments of principal and/or interest of the loan are due for more than 12 months and the "net realizable
value" of security is insufficient to cover payment of principal and accrued interest. Cessation of accrual of
interest for accounting purpose shall not preclude an entity to continue to accrued interest on a memorandum
basis for legal enforcement purposes unless the loan is written off.

Movement in Accrued Interest Receivable
Particulars As on 31st As on 32nd As on 31st As on 31st
Ashadh 2078 Ashadh 2079 Ashadh 2080 Ashad 2081
Interset Suspense( Receivable) 52,896,000.00 75,219,759.00 103,118,813.33 | 173,872,771.04
Interest receivable due for more than 1 year 18,313,562.00 24,337,388.00 48,486,332.60 94,979,305.51
Interest receivable due for 1 year or less 34,582,438.00 50,882,371.00 54,632,480.73 78,893,465.53
Incremental amount 6,993,662.00 16,299,933.00 3,750,109.73 24,260,984.80
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3.11.2 Feeand commissionincome

Fees and commissions are generally recognised on an accrual basis when the service has been provided based
on satisfaction of the performance obligations. The fees and commission income and expense that are integral
to the effective interest rate on the financial assets and financial liability are included in the measurement of
the effective interest rate. The Microfinance has opted to use carve-out on this matter and accounted all
realized fee and commission income upfront.

Commission on guarantees issued that are for more than one year are immediately accounted as income. Ifthe
period of guarantee is more than one year, then the proportionate amount of fee is accounted as income.

3.11.3 Dividendincome
Dividend income is recognized when the right to receive dividend is established i.e. when the dividend is
approved by general meeting of companies.

3.11.4 Nettradingincome
Income derived from buying/selling of assets and liabilities classified as for trading purpose are accounted as
net trading income. Gain and loss on trading assets and liabilities are recognized on mark to market basis and
not on realization basis.

3.11.5 Other Operating Income
Income other than interest, fees & commission and trading income are accounted as other operating income.
This primarily comprises of changes in foreign exchange rate, dividend income, gain on disposal of non-
financial assets etc.

3.12 Interest expense
For Financial Liabilities measured at Amortized Cost using the rate that closely approximates effective interest rate,
interest expense is recorded using such rate. EIR is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or
receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the net carrying
amount of the financial asset or financial liability.
The Microfinance uses Carve-Out mentioned previously and treat coupon rate as Effective Rate.

3.13 Employees Benefits
Employee expenses includes the amount paid to employees of microfinance in respect of their service. Payment in
respect of services include short-term, post-employment, termination and other long-term employee benefits. Post-
employment benefits are in the form of defined contribution plan and defined benefit plan. Expenses under defined
contribution plan are accounted as they incur and on defined benefit plan as per the actuarial valuation.
Short term employee benefits include salary, allowance, annual bonus based on profit of the Microfinance, subsidized
loans etc. These are provided as the services are rendered by the employees and measured on undiscounted amount of
payment made.
Defined Benefit Plans include the gratuity entitle to the employees as per Employee Service Bylaws of the
Microfinance.
Other long-term employee benefits include accumulated leave not encashed during service period. These are
generally paid on retirement or termination of service of the employee, or when the accumulation exceeds the
prescribed period.

3.14 Leases
NFRS 16 introduces new or amended requirements with respect to lease accounting. It introduces significants
changes to lease accounting by removing the distinction between operating and financial lease and requiring the
recognition of a right-of-use assets and a lease liability at commencement for all leases, except for short-term leases
and lease of low value assets when such recognition exemptions are adopted. The impact of adoption of NFRS 16 on
the financial statements is described below.
The date of initial application of NFRS 16 for the Microfinance is 1st Shrawan 2078.
The Microfinance has applied NFRS 16 using the modified retrospective approach which:
. requires the Microfinance to recognize the effect of initially applying NFRS 16 by considering the date of initial

application as the date of commencement of lease.

. does not permit restatement of comparatives, which continue to be presented under NAS 17 and IFRIC 4.

Under NFRS 16, right-of-use assets are tested for impairment in accordance with NAS 36.
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For short-term leases (lease term of 12 month or less) and leases of low-value assets, the microfiance has opted to

recognize a lease expenses on straight-line basis as permitted by NFRS 16. This expenses is presented with in 'Notes

4.35- Other Operating expeses' in the statement of profit or loss.

The Microfinance has used the following practical expedients when applying the modified restrospective approach to

lease previously classified as operating leases applying NAS 17.

. The Microfinance has applied a single discount rate of 10% to a portfolio of lease with reasonably similar
characteristics.

. The Microfinance has elected not to recognize right-of-use assets and lease liabilities to leases for which the
lease term ends within 12 months of the date of initial application.

. The Microfiance has exclued initial direct costs from the measurement of the right-of-use assets at the date of
initial application.

. The Microfinance has used hindsight when determining the lease term when the contract contains options to
extend or terminate the lease.

3.15 Share Capital and Reserves
Share Capital and Reserves are different classes of equity claims. Equity claims are claims on the residual interest in
the assets of the Microfinance after deducting all its liabilities. Changes in Equity during the reporting period
comprise income and expenses recognized in the Statement of Financial Position; plus comtribution from the holders
of equity claims, minus distribution to holders of equity claims.

3.15.1 Share Capital
Ordinary Shares in the Microfinance are recognized at the amount paid per ordinary share. Swarojgar
Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd.'s shares are listed at Nepal Stock Exchange Ltd. The holders of ordinary
shares are entitled to one vote per share at Annual General Meeting of the Microfinance and are entitled to
receive annual dividend payments. The Microfinance doesn't have any other form of share capital apart from
the ordinary shares.
Dividends on ordinary shares classified as equity are recognized in equity in the period in which they are
declared.
The shares issue expenses in respect of Bonus Shares which can be avoided for the issue was charged in the
year of issue directly through equity (under Retained Earnings) and disclosed in the statement of changes in
equity. Tax impact is also disclosed.

3.15.2 Reserves
Microfinance has created various types of reserves as part of regulatory requirement.
a) General Reserve
Twenty Percent of the net profit as stated in Section 44 of Bank and Financial Institution Act, 2073 and Fifty
Percent of additional amount of Cash Dividend and Bonus Shares if declared and distributed in excess of
Fifteen Percent as provisioned in Direction No. 13 of Directive No.1/79 of Unified Directive for
Microfinance issued by NRB is set aside to the general reserve.

Movement in General Reserve during this fiscal year:

Particulars Amount(NPR)

Opening Balance of 1st Sharwan 2080 150,586,062.71
Addition to the Fund this FY

a. Provision of this FY (20% of net profit as per NFRS) 22,281,133.54

b. 50% of Dividend in excess of 15% Dividend -

Total (A) 172,867,196.25

Less : Expenses from Fund this FY -

Total (B) -

Closing Balance as on Ashad End 2081 (A-B) 172,867,196.25
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b) Exchange Equalization Reserve
This is Statutory Reserve created in compliance with section 45 of Bank and Financial Institution Act, 2073
(including Amendments). Twenty-Five Percent of the Revaluation Gain on the foreign currency held as at the
end of Fiscal Year shall be aside to Exchange Equalization Reserve.

¢) Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Reserve
In line with Point 14 of Directive 6/079, Microfinance is required to allocate 1% of its net profit for the year for
CSR and is required to create CSR Reserve. The amount appropriated to this reserve is expensed off as
prescribed in the same Directive in the next fiscal year.

Movement in CSR Fund this fiscal year:

Particulars Amount(NPR)
Opening Balance of 1st Sharwan 2080 2,215,349.23
Addition to the Fund this FY
a. Provision of this FY (1% of net profit as per NFRS) 1,114,056.68
b. 10% of Dividend in excess of 15% -
Total (A) | 3,329,405.91
Less : Expenses from Fund this FY 175,706.00
a. Assistance to Cultural Program 46,750.00
b. Dustbin Distributed to Wada Office, Siraha-1 5,300.00
c. Dustbin Distributed to Manakamana Temple, Gorkha 29,437.00
d. Celling Fan & Dustbin Distribution to Local Police Office & Wada Office, Shivasatakshi, Jhapa 13,900.00
e. Dustbin Distributed to Shree Bhanudaya Higher Secondary School, Nawalpur 8,500.00
f. Chair provided to Wada Office, Baradashi-3, Jhapa 5,500.00
g. Kitchen Appliance provided to Area Police Office, Rajgadh, Jhapa 6,280.00
h. Various Financial Literacy Programs 60,039.00
Total (B) 175,706.00
Closing Balance as on Ashad End 2081 (A-B) 3,153,699.91

d) ClientProtection Fund
Client Protection Fund is created at One Percent of Net Profit. In addition to this, Thirty-Five Percent of
additional amount of Cash Dividend and Bonus Shares, if declared and distributed in excess of Fifteen Percent,
as provisioned in Unified Directives 2079/04/01/Ja/A issued by NRB to Microfinance is also set-aside

accordingly.
Movement in Client Protection Fund this fiscal year:
Particulars Amount(NPR
Opening Balance of 1st Sharwan 2080 36,460,925.70
Addition to the Fund this FY
a. Interest Income to the fund 3,427,468.93
b. Miscellenious Addition 10,588.47
c. 1% of Net Profit as per NFRS of the FY 1,114,056.68

d. 35% of Dividend in excess of 15% -
Total (A) | 41,013,039.78

Less : Expenses from Fund this FY
a. Assistance to member during pregnancy for hygiene foods and expenses for medical

cure of member 5,418,525.00

b. Restoration and Security of failure of Business of Borrower 1,813,475.00

c. Help for centre home repair 22,500.00

d. Scholarship Expenses 2,197,811.00

e. Training and Observation Expenses of Member 5,565,560.00
Total Expenses (B) | 15,017,871.00

Closing Balance as on Ashad End 2081 (A-B) 25,995,168.78

As per the directives 4(1)(Ja)(aa) of NRB issued for microfinance, the microfinance shall earmark and invest
separately the portion of residual amount of the fund. In compliance with the provision, the management has
invested NPR 35,000,000 in fixed deposit of various banks and financial institutions and residual amount has
been kept in bank account for future expenditure purpose.

d) Regulatory Reserve
The amount that is allocated from Profit/Retained Earnings of the microfinance to this reserve as per the
directives of NRB for the purpose of implementation of NFRS and which shall not be regarded as free for
distribution of dividend shall be presented under this reserve. The regulatory reserve of the microfinance
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includes the reserve net of tax and employee bonus created relating to Accrued Interest Receivable as on Ashadh
end 2080 not recovered. Reserve on Deferred Tax Assets, Non-banking Assets, Reduction in fair value of
investment in Equity below cost price, Actuarial Loss etc.

Details of Regulatory reserve has been presented herewith

Particulars

FY 2080.081

Movement
During The
Year

FY 2079.080

Interest Receivable

Short Loan Loss Provision

Short provision for possible losses on investments
Short provision on NBA

Deferred Tax assets

Deferred Tax assets movement through OCI

Gain on Bargain Purchase

18,264,574.27

12,795,662.07

(16,153,888.59)

414,574.91
(340,189.20)

3,247,990.83

34,418,462.86

12,721,276.36

Actuarial Gain Recognized/Loss Reserve 6,056,581.86 2,808,591.03
Fair Value loss recognized in OCI - - -
Deferred Tax assets recognized in Acturial Reserve 340,189.20 340,189.20

Others -
Total 37,457,007.40 (12,491,322.85) 49,948,330.25

e) Capital Reserve
This is a Non-Statutory Reserve and represents the amount of all the capital nature reserves such as the amounts
arising from share forfeiture, Capital Grants and Capital Reserve arising out of business combinations. Funds in
this reserve are not available for distribution of Cash Dividend but can be capitalized by issuing bonus shares
upon obtaining prior approval from the NRB.

f)  Fair Value Reserve
The fair value reserve comprises the cumulative net change in the fair value of financial assets that are measured
at fair value and the changes in fair value is recognized in other comprehensive income, until the assets are
derecognized. The cumulative amount of changes in fair value of those financial assets shall be presented under
this account head.

g) Actuarial Gain Reserve
The amount that is allocated from profit or retained earnings of the microfinance both positive or negative to this
reserve as per the directives of NRB for the purpose of implementation of NFRS and which shall not be regarded
as free reserve for distribution of dividend are recorded in this reserve. The reserve includes actuarial gain/(loss)
net of tax on defined benefit plan.

h) Assets Revaluation Reserve
This is a non-statutory reserve and is the requirement in the application of accounting policy for non-financial
assets such as property, equipment, investment property and intangible assets that are measured following
revaluation model. Revaluation reserve often serve as a cushion against unexpected loss but may not be fully
available to absorb unexpected losses due to the subsequent deterioration in the market values and tax
consequences of revaluation. The microfinance hasn’t followed revaluation model.

i)  Capital Redemption Reserve
This head shall include the statutory reserve created for making payment towards Redeemable Non-Convertible
Preference Shares.

j)  Proposed Dividend Distribution
The Board of the microfinance has not recommended any dividend for the Financial Year 2080.081 yet. Any
dividend recommended for stated period by the board will be subject to ratification by the Annual General
Meeting (AGM) of the Shareholders.

k) InvestmentAdjustmentReserve
It is a regulatory reserve created as a cushion for adverse price movements in MFI's investments as directed by
the Directives of Nepal Rastra Bank.
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1) Staff Training Fund
The fund is created for the purpose of Staff Training. As per the directives to microfinance by NRB, the
Microfinance needs to spend at least Three Percent of last fiscal year’s total Personnel Expenses (Salary &
Allowancces) for the development and trainings of the staff/employee. Further if the microfinance couldn’t
spend up to the limit of 3%, the shortfall amount shall be transferred to the Staff Training Fund and shall be used

for staff trainings in subsequent years.

Movement in Staff Training Fund this fiscal year:

Particulars FY 2080.081 FY 2079.080
Opening Balance as on 1st Sharwan 3,612,029.74 2,612,902.00
Expenses to be made during the year (3 % of Salary & Allowance of Previous FY) 5,316,049.50 4,739,039.24
Actual Expenses made on Staff Training During the FY (4,985,793.00) | (3,739,911.50)
Fund created (+) / reversal (-) 330,256.50 999,127.74
Closing Balance as on Ashad End 3,942,286.24 3,612,029.74

3.15.3 Share Premium
The amount of money collected on issue of shares in excess of its face value shall be presented under this

heading. The outstanding amount in this account shall not be considered eligible for distribution of cash
dividend.

3.15.4 Retained Earning
The accumulated profits which has not been distributed to shareholders and has been ploughed back in the
licensed institutions' operations and is free for distribution of dividend to the shareholders shall be presented
under this heading.

3.16 Earning per shareincluding diluted
The Microfinance presents basic and diluted Earnings Per Share (EPS) data for its ordinary shares. Basic EPS is
calculated by dividing the profit and loss attributable to ordinary equity holders of the microfinance by the weighted
average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the period. Diluted EPS is determined by adjusting both the
profit and loss attributable to the ordinary equity holders and the weighted average number or ordinary shares
outstanding, for the effects of all dilutive potential ordinary shares, if any.
Earnings per share is calculated and presented in the face of Statement of Profit or Loss.

3.17 Segmentreporting

An operating segment is a component of an entity :

e  Thatengages in business activities from which it may earn revenues and incur expenses (including revenues and
expenses relating to transactions

e Whose operating results are regularly reviewed by the entity's Chief operating decision maker to make decisions
about resources to be allocated to the segment and assess its performance, and

e  Forwhichdiscrete financial information is available.

Notevery part of an entity is necessarily an operating segment or part of an operating segment. For example, corporate

headquarters or some functional departments may not earn revenues or may earn revenues that are only incidental to

the activities of the entity and would not be operating segments.

The microfinance has identified seven segments based on the geographic locations of its offices in the 7 provinces of

the country. Interest earnings generated while conducting businesses under different segments are reported under the

respective segment. For segmentation purpose, all business transactions between the segments are conducted on the

arm's length basis, with intra unit revenue and cost being nullified when compiled.

3.18 Events after Reporting Date

These are the events occurring between the reporting date and up to the date of approval of financial statements which
are either adjustable or unadjustable.

Adjustable events are adjusted in the presented financial statements. Except for the following events relating to fraud
(reffe note 4.33), there are no events that require additional disclosure in the financial statements: In the light of
detection of misappropriation of funds from the bank accounts of Hetauda Branch by the Branch Manager amounting
to NRS, 1,01,20,000.00, during the Financial Year 2080-81, the management of the company is in process of
conducting special investigation and taking legal recourse for recovery of the stated amount and any additional
amount which may have been misappropriated duing the Financial Year 2081.082.
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SWAROJGAR LAGHUBITTA BITTIYA SANSTHA LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the Year Ended 31st Ashad 2081
Note No. 4.1 (Figures in NPR)
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalent comprise the total amount of cash-in-hand, balances with other bank and financial institutions, money at
call and short notice, treasury bills having original maturity of less than three months and cash in transit is presented as follows:

Particulars As on As on

31st Ashad 2081 31st Ashadh 2080
Cash in hand 2,317,972.00 4,358,225.00
Balance with B/FIs 483,818,646.17 297,528,957.35
Money at call and short notice -
Other -
Total 486,136,618.17 301,887,182.35
Note No. 4.2

Statutory Balances and Due from Nepal Rastra Bank
Balances held with Nepal Rastra Bank including balance for compulsory cash reserve is presented as follows:

Particulars As on As on
31st Ashad 2081 31st Ashadh 2080
Statutory Balances with NRB 2,950,000.00 2.,950,000.00
Statutory Balances with BFIs 45,531,886.58 42,227,282.22
Securities Purchased under re-sale agreement - -
Other deposit and receivable from NRB - -
Total 48,481,886.58 45,177,282.22

Note No. 4.3
Placement with Bank and Financial Institutions

Placements with domestic as well as foreign bank and financial institutions with original maturities of more than three months from
the acquisition date are presented as follows:

Particulars As on As on
teu 31st Ashad 2081 31st Ashadh 2080
Placements with domestic B/FIs - -
Less: Allowances for Impairment - -
Total - -
Note No. 4.4
Derivative Financial Instruments
The Microfinance does not have any Derivative Financial Insturments.
Particular As on As on
articutars 31st Ashad 2081 31st Ashadh 2080

Held for trading - -
Interest rate swap - -

Currency swap - -

Forward exchange contract - -
Others - -
Held for risk management - -
Interest rate swap - -

Currency swap - -
Forward exchange contract - -
Others - -
Total - -
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Note No. 4.5
Other Trading Assets

The Microfinance does not have any trading assets.

Particulars

As on
31st Ashad 2081

As on
31st Ashadh 2080

Treasury Bills

Government Bonds

NRB Bonds

Domestic Corporate Bonds

Equities

Other

Total

Pledged
Non-pledged

Note No. 4.6

Loans and advances to MFIs and Cooperatives

The Microfinance does not have any Loans and advances to MFIs and Coperatives

Particulars

As on
31st Ashad 2081

As on
31st Ashadh 2080

Loans to microfinance institutions

Loans to FIs

Loans to Cooperatives

Less:Allowance for impairment

Other

Less: Allowance for impairment

Total

Note 4.6.1.
Allowance for impairment

Particulars

As on
31st Ashad 2081

As on
31st Ashadh 2080

Balance for Begninng

Impairment loss for the year

Charge for the year

Recoveries/reversal

Amount written off

Balance at Ending

Note No. 4.7
Loans and advances to customers

Sum of the outstanding amount of all loans and advances extended to the customers other than BFIs, bills purchased and
discounted and amortized cost of staff loans, less the amount of impairment allowances is presented under this head.

Particulars

As on
31st Ashad 2081

As on
31st Ashadh 2080

Loans and advances measured at amortised cost

8,225,774,339.00

6,637,315,179.24

AIR On Loans and Advances

78,893,465.53

54,632,480.73

Less: Impairment allowances

(232,922,177.70)

(174,615,585.83)

Collective Allowances

(24,198,650.18)

(19,303,687.09)

Individual Allowances

(208,723,527.52)

(155,311,898.74)

Net amount

8,071,745,626.83

6,517,332,074.14

Loans and advances measured at FVTPL

Total

8,071,745,626.83

6,517,332,074.14
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Note No. 4.7.1
Analysis of Loans and advacnes- By Product
Particular As on Ason
cutars 31st Ashad 2081 31st Ashadh 2080
Product
Term Loans 8,225,774,339.00 6,637,315,179.24

Short term, term loan

Hire purchase loan

Personal Residential Loans

Staff loans - -
Others - -
Sub Total 8,225,774,339.00 6,637,315,179.24
Interest receivable 78,893,465.53 54,632,480.73
Grand Total 8,304,667,804.53 6,691,947,659.97
Note No. 4.7.2

Analysis of Loans and advacnes- By Collateral

Particulars As on Ason
31st Ashad 2081 31st Ashadh 2080

Secured

Immovable assets

1,241,875,860.17

1,305,177,805.18

Government Guarantee

Collateral of Government securities

Collateral of fixed deposit receipt

Group Guarantee

6,983,898,478.83

5,332,137,374.06

Personal Guarantee

Other collateral -
Sub Total 8,225,774,339.00 6,637,315,179.24
Unsecured -
Grand Total 8,225,774,339.00 6,637,315,179.24
Note No. 4.7.3
Allowances for Impairment

Particulars As on As on

teu 31st Ashad 2081 31st Ashadh 2080

Specific allowance for impairment
Balance at Shrawan 1 19,303,687.09 23,360,601.27
Impairment loss for the year -
Recoveries/reversal during the year 4,894,963.09 (4,056,914.18)

Write-offs

Exchange rate variance on foreign currency

Other Movement

Balance at Ashad End 24,198,650.18 19,303,687.09
Collective allowances for impairment
Balance at Shrawan 1 155,311,898.74 95,384,054.43

Impairment loss for the year

53,411,628.78

59,927,844.31

Recoveries/reversal during the year

Write-offs

Exchange rate variance on foreign currency

Other Movement

Balance at Ashad End

208,723,527.52

155,311,898.74

Total Allowance for impairment

232,922,177.70

174,615,585.83

qgeit arffer gfeae-3050 /059

« 16" Annual Report-2080/081




= Swarojgar Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd,

Note No. 4.8
Investment securities

Investments made by Microfinance in financial instruments has been presented under this account head in three
categories i.e. investment securities designated at fair value through profit or loss, investment securities measured
at amortized cost and investment in equity measured at fair value through other comprehensive income which is as

follows:
Particulars As on As on
31st Ashad 2081 31st Ashadh 2080
Investment securities measured at amortised cost -
Investment Securities measured at FVTPL -
Investment Securities measured at FVTOCI 1,000,000.00 1,000,000.00
Total 1,000,000.00 1,000,000.00
Note No. 4.8.1
Investment securities measured at amortized cost
Particulars As on As on
u 31st Ashad 2081 31st Ashadh 2080
Debt securities - -
Government bonds - -
Government treasury bills - -
Nepal Rastra Bank bonds - -
Nepal Rastra Bank deposits instruments - -
Other - -
Less: specific allowances for impairment - -
Total - -
Note No. 4.8.2
Investment in equity measured at fair value through other comprehensive income
Particular As on As on
teutars 31st Ashad 2081 31st Ashadh 2080
Equity intrument -
Quoted equity instrument -
Unquoted equity instrument 1,010,000.00 1,010,000.00
Less: specific allowances for impairment (10,000.00) (10,000.00)
Total 1,000,000.00 1,000,000.00
Note No 4.8.3 (Figures in NPR)
Infromation relating to investment in equities
. As on 31th Ashadh 2081 As on 31st Ashadh 2080
Particulars
Cost Fair value Cost Fair value
Investment in Unquoted Equity
Nepal Finsoft company Ltd
1,000,000.00 1,000,000.00 1,000,000.00 1,000,000.00
10,000 shares of Rs. 100 each
Centre for Microfinance Company
10,000.00 10,000.00 10,000.00 10,000.00
100 shares of Rs. 100 each
Total 1,010,000.00 1,010,000.00 1,010,000.00 1,010,000.00
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Note No. 4.9
Current Tax Assets

Advance tax deposited by the bank less tax liabilities are presented under this head. Liabilities recognized for the purpose of

current income tax, including fees, penalties are presented under this head.

Particulars

As on

31st Ashad 2081

As on
31st Ashadh 2080

Current tax assets

Current year income tax assets

97,080,405.13

83,038,053.27

Tax assets of prior periods

Total

97,080,405.13

83,038,053.27

Current tax Liabilities

Current year income tax liabilities

55,512,415.24

51,944,439.77

Tax Liabilities of prior periods

Total 55,512,415.24 51,944,439.77
Total 41,567,989.89 31,093,613.50
Note 4.10 (Figures in NPR)

Investment Properties

Land or land and building other than those classified as property and equipment, and non- current assets held for sale under
relevant accounting standard has been presented under this account head. This shall include land, land and building acquired as

non-banking assets by the bank but not sold.
The MFT has no investment properties.

Particulars

As on
31st Ashad 2081

As on
31st Ashadh 2080

Investment Properties measured at fair value

Balance as on Shrawan 1

Addition/Disposal during the year

Net changes in fair value during the year

Adjustment/Transfer

Net Amount

Investment Properties measured at cost

Balance as on Shrawan 1

Addition/Disposal during the year

Adjustment/Transfer

Accumulated depreciation

Accumulated impairment loss

Net Amount

Total

_@l ‘1§3ﬁ ClINED l3|1%|'a"—{‘_‘|'—QOCO /0G1q « 16" Annual Report-2080/081
—




IRIS1IR. crgfdd fadi=r izen for.
Swarojgar Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd.

SWAROJGAR LAGHUBITTA BITTIYA SANSTHA LIMITED

Notes to the financial statements for the Year Ended 31st Ashad 2081

(Figures in NPR)
Note 4.11 Property and Equipment
Particulars Land Building Vehicle Eq(:::)i;eent Other Assets Total
Cost
Balance as on Ashad end 2079 15,779,500.00 5,043,687.17  45410,039.08  18,152,283.38  84,385,509.63
Addition during the Year
Acquisition 2,241,445.50 1,896,788.00 4,138,233.50
Capitalization
Disposal during the year (131,814.37) (131,814.37)
Adjustment/Revaluation
Balance as on Ashad end 2080 15,779,500.00 4,911,872.80  47,651,484.58  20,049,071.38  88,391,928.76
Addition during the Year
Acquisition 37,299.00 1,804,663.00 4,695,456.00 6,537,418.00
Capitalization -
Disposal during the year -
Adjustment/Revaluation (50,244.06) 50,244.10 0.04
Balance as on Ashad End 2081 15,779,500.00 4,949171.80  49,405,903.52  24,794,771.48  94,929,346.80
Depreciation and Impairment
Balance as on Ashad end 2079 3,823,008.13  28,084,679.25 9,440,905.11  41,348,592.49
Impairment for the year
Depreciation charge for the Year 223,335.01 4,672,859.37 2,513,179.69 7,409,374.06
Disposals
Adjustment
Balance as on Ashad end 2080 4,046,343.14  32,757,538.61  11,954,084.80  48,757,966.56
Impairment for the year
Depreciation charge for the Year 177,280.76 3,990,887.24 2,880,221.34 7,048,389.34
Disposals
Adjustment
Balance as on Ashad End 2081 4,223,623.90  36,748,425.85  14,834,306.14  55,806,355.90
Capital Work in Progress
Net Book Value
As on 31st Ashadh 2078 15,779,500.00 1,525,923.82  15,390,867.78 4,536,447.23  37,232,738.82
As on 32nd Ashadh 2079 15,779,500.00 1,220,679.04  17,325,359.84 8,711,378.27  43,036,917.14
As on 31st Ashadh 2080 15,779,500.00 865,529.66  14,893,945.97 8,094,986.58  39,633,962.20
As on 31st Ashad 2081 15,779,500.00 725,547.90  12,657,477.67 9,960,465.34  39,122,990.91
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Note : 4.12 (Figures in NPR)
Goodwill and Intangible Assets

. . Software
Particulars Goodwill Total
Purchased Developed

Cost
Balance as on 1st Shrawan 2078 2,816,050.00 2,816,050.00
Addition during the Year -

Acquisition 197,750.00 197,750.00

Capitalization -

Disposal during the year -
Adjustment/Revaluation -
Balance as on 32nd Ashadh 2079 - 3,013,800.00 - 3,013,800.00
Addition during the Year -

Acquisition -

Capitalization -
Disposal during the year -
Adjustment/Revaluation -
Balance as on 31st Ashadh 2080 - 3,013,800.00 - 3,013,800.00
Addition during the Year -

Acquisition -

Capitalization -
Disposal during the year -

Adjustment/Revaluation -

Balance as on Ashad End 2081 - 3,013,800.00 - 3,013,800.00
Ammortization and Impairment -
Balance as on 32nd Ashadh 2079 - 2,287,960.38 - 2,287,960.38
Ammortization charge for the Year 376,667.24 376,667.24
Imapirment for the year -
Disposals -
Adjustment -
Balance as on 31st Ashadh 2080 - 2,664,627.62 - 2,664,627.62
Ammortization charge for the Year 185,319.12 185,319.12
Imapirment for the year -
Disposals -
Adjustment 0.02 0.02
Balance as on Ashad End 2081 - 2,849,946.76 - 2,849,946.76

Capital Work in Progress - - - -

Net Book Value

As on 31st Ashadh 2078 - 944,318.00 - 944,318.00
As on 32nd Ashadh 2079 - 725,839.62 - 725,839.62
As on 31st Ashadh 2080 - 349,172.38 - 349,172.38
As on 31st Ashad 2081 - 163,853.24 - 163,853.24
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Note No. 4.13
Deferred Tax

(Figures in NPR)

Deferred tax is calculated on temporary differences between the book values of financial assets/liabilities and tax bases of

assets/liabilities using the statutory tax rate of 30%. Details as follows:

As on 31st Ashadh 2081
Particulars Deferred Tax | Deferred Tax | ¢t Deferred Tax
Assets Liabilities Assets/
(Liabilities)
Deferred tax on temporary differences on following items
Investment properties (NBA) - - -
Interest Receivable - - -
Employees' Defined Benefit Plan 11,194,731.51 - 11,194,731.51
Provisions ( Bank deposit and advance) 16,201.50 - 16,201.50
Property and Equipment (92,400.29) - (92,400.29)
Intangible Assets 109,363.85 - 109,363.85
Lease Liabilities 7,280,423.72 | 6,865,522.17 414,901.55
Other temporary differences - - -
Deferred tax on temporary differences 11,642,798.13
Deferred tax on carry forward of unused tax losses 1,152,863.94 1,152,863.94
Net Deferred tax assets/(liabilities) as on 31st Ashad 2081 12,795,662.07
Deferred tax asset/(liabilities) as on Shrawan 1, 2080 12,796,155.58
Deferred Tax income/(expense) during the year (493.51)
Deferred tax income/(expense) recognised in profit or loss 339,695.69
Deferred tax income/(expense) recognised in other comprehensive
income (340,189.20)
Deferred tax income/(expense) recognised in directly in equity -
As on 31st Ashadh 2080
Particulars Deferred Tax | Deferred Tax | et Deferred Tax
Assets Liabilities Assets/
(Liabilities)

Deferred tax on temporary differences on following items
Investment properties (NBA) - - -
Interest Receivable - - -
Employees' Defined Benefit Plan 10,515,842.82 - 10,515,842.82
Provisions ( Bank deposit and advance) 16,201.50 - 16,201.50
Property and Equipment (54,397.32) (54,397.32)
Intangible Assets 109,363.85 109,363.85
Lease Liabilities 10,427,689.01 |  9,755,696.20 671,992.81
Other temporary differences - - -
Deferred tax on temporary differences 11,259,003.66
Deferred tax on carry forward of unused tax losses 1,537,151.92 1,537,151.92
Net Deferred tax assets/(liabilities) as on 31st Ashadh 2080 12,796,155.58
Deferred tax asset/(liabilities) as on Shrawan 1, 2079 (3,705,724.00)
Deferred Tax income/(expense) during the year 16,501,879.58
Deferred tax income/(expense) recognised in profit or loss 16,228,467.68
Deferred tax income/(expense) recognised in other comprehensive
income 273,411.90
Deferred tax income/(expense) recognised in directly in equity -
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Note: 4.14
Other Assets

Other Asset include accounts receivable, interest receivable, accrued income, prepayments, deposit, deferred employee benefits and

stationery stock details presented as follows:

Particulars As on As on
31st Ashad 2081 31st Ashadh 2080
Assets held for sale - -
Other non banking assets - -
Bills receivable - -
Accounts receivable 13,547,451.04 1,516,754.82
Accrued Income -
Prepayments and deposits 245,687.37 2,607,275.96
Staff Advances 5,727,049.38 7,279,769.38
Income tax deposit 400,000.00 400,000.00

Deferred Employee Expenditure

ROU Assets 22.,885,073.89 32,518,987.32
Consumable Stores 3,063,452.95 3,870,662.44
Total 45,868,714.63 48,193,449.92
Note:4.15
Due to Bank and Financial Institutions
Particul As on As on
articuiars 31st Ashad 2081 31st Ashadh 2080
Borrowing from BFIs - -
Settlement and clearing accounts
Other
Total - -
Note:4.16
Due to Nepal Rastra Bank
Particular As on Ason
culars 31st Ashad 2081 31st Ashadh 2080
Refinance from NRB - -
Standing liquidity facility - -
Lender of last resort facilty from NRB - -
Securities sold under repurchase agreement - -
Other payable to NRB - -
Total - -
Note:4.17
Derivative financial instruments
Particul As on As on
articuiars 31st Ashad 2081 31st Ashadh 2080

Held for trading

Interest rate swap

Currency swap

Forward exchange contract

Others

Held for risk management

Interest rate swap

Currency swap

Forward exchange contract

Others

Total
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Note:4.18
Deposits from Customers

All deposits account other than deposit from bank and financial institutions (local and foreign bank and NRB) is presented under

this head. Details are presented as follows:

Particulars

As on
31st Ashad 2081

As on
31st Ashadh 2080

Institutional Customers:

Term deposits

Call Deposits

Other

Sub total:

Individual Customers:

Term deposits

Saving Deposits

Savings from Members

3,733,553,067.08

3,335,150,428.87

Other -
Sub total: 3,733,553,067.08 3,335,150,428.87
Total 3,733,553,067.08 3,335,150,428.87
Note:4.19
Borrowing
The Microfinance has following borrowings as on reporting date.

Particul As on As on

articutars 31st Ashad 2081 31st Ashadh 2080

Domestic Borrowing:

Nepal Government

Other licensed institution

3,858,862,589.21

2,620,936,589.90

Other

Sub total

3,858,862,589.21

2,620,936,589.90

Foreign Borrowing:

Foreign Bank and Financial Institutions

Multilateral Development Bank

Other institutions

Sub total

Total

3,858,862,589.21

2,620,936,589.90

Note:4.20
Provisions

Particulars

As on
31st Ashad 2081

As on
31st Ashadh 2080

Provisions for redundancy

Provision for restructuring

Pending legal issues and tax litigation

Onerous contract

Other Provisions

10,174,005.00

54,005.00

Total

10,174,005.00

54,005.00
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Note:4.20.1
Movement in provision
Particulars As on As on
articular 31st Ashad 2081 31st Ashadh 2080
Balance at Beginning 54,005.00 54,005.00
Provisions made during the year 10,120,000.00 -
Provisions used during the year 4 -
Provisions reversed during the year - -
Unwind of discount 4 -
Balance at Ending 10,174,005.00 54,005.00
Note:4.21
Other liabilities
Particul As on As on
articulars 31st Ashad 2081 31st Ashadh 2080
Liability for employees defined benefit obligations 8,914,130.00 9,241,106.00
Liability for long-service leave 28,401,641.70 25,811,703.39
Short-term employee benefits 95,927.01 285,042.43

Bills Payable

Employee Provident fund

Creditors and Accruals

17,710,798.22

19,866,012.89

Interest payable on deposit

5,340.09

5,340.09

Interest payable on borrowing

4,023,411.14

3,821,329.62

Liabilities on deferred grant income

Unpaid Dividend - -
Lease Liabilities 24,268,079.07, 34,758,963.35
Employee Bonus Payable 19,284,780.13 13,092,611.22

Other Miscellaneous liabilities

967,013.19

885,901.76

Payable to Member for Service Charge Refund

25,054,241.75

15,848,734.10

Others - Depreciation Fund

128,725,362.30

Total 123,616,744.85
Note:4.21.1
Defined benefit obligation
Particular As on As on
articuiars 31st Ashad 2081 31st Ashadh 2080
Present value of funded obligations -
Present value of non-funded obligations 8,914,130.00 9,241,106.00
Total present value of obligations 8,914,130.00 9,241,106.00
Fair value of plan assets -
Present value of net obligations 8,914,130.00 9,241,106.00
Recognised liability for defined benefit obligation 8,914,130.00 9,241,106.00
Note:4.21.2
Plan Assets
Particul As on As on
articuiars 31st Ashad 2081 31st Ashadh 2080

Equity securities

Government bonds

Bank deposits

Other

Total
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Note:4.21.3
Movement in the present value of defined benefit obligations
Particulars As on As on
31st Ashad 2081 31st Ashadh 2080
Defined benefit obligation at Beginning 9,241,106.00 7,832,576.00
Actuarial losses/(gain) (1,133,964.00) 911,373.00
Benefit paid by the plan (172,186.00) (778,315.00)
Current service cost 232,731.00 658,710.00
Interest cost 746,443.00 616,762.00
Defined benefit obligation at Ending 8,914,130.00 9,241,106.00
Note:4.21.4
Movement in the fair value of plan assets
Particular: As on As on
culars 31st Ashad 2081 31st Ashadh 2080
Fair value of plan assets at Begining - -
Contributions paid into the plan - -
Benefit paid during the year - -
Actuarial (losses) gains - -
Expected return on plan assets . -
Fair value of plan assets at Ending - -
Note:4.21.5
Amount recognised in profit or loss
Particulars As on As on
31st Ashad 2081 31st Ashadh 2080

Current service cost

11,915,326.00

13,334,291.00

Interest on obligation

2,789,153.00

2,240,665.00

Expected return on plan assets

Actuarial loss/(gain)

(9,613,622.00)

(7,679,205.00)

Total 5,090,857.00 7,895,751.00
Note:4.21.6
Amount recognized in other comprehensive income
Particulars As on As on

ted 31st Ashad 2081 31st Ashadh 2080
Acturial (gain)/loss (1,133,964.00) 911,373.00
Total (1,133,964.00) 911,373.00
Note:4.21.7
Actuarial assumptions
Particular: As on As on

cuiars 31st Ashad 2081 31st Ashadh 2080
Discount rate 9% 9%
Expected return on plan assets - -
Future salary increase 5.75% 5.75%
Withdrawal rate 11% 20.67%
Total 26% 35%
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Note:4.21.8
Long-service leave

Particulars As on As on
et 31st Ashad 2081 31st Ashadh 2080
Present value of funded obligations - -
Present value of non -funded obligations 28,401,641.70 25,811,703.39
Total present value of obligations 28,401,641.70 25,811,703.39
Fair value of plan assets - -
Present value of net obligations 28,401,641.70 25,811,703.39
Recognised liability for long -service leave 28,401,641.70 25,811,703.39
Note:4.21.9
Movement in the present value of long -service leave
Particular As on As on
cuiars 31st Ashad 2081 31st Ashadh 2080

Other long-term obligation at Beginning
Actuarial losses/(gain)
Benefit paid by the plan

Current service cost

25,811,703.39
(9,613,622.00)
(1,521,744.69)
11,682,595.00

21,109,206.39
(7,679,205.00)
(1,917,782.00)
12,675,581.00

Interest cost 2,042.710.00 1,623,903.00

Other long-term obligation at Ending 28,401,641.70 25,811,703.39

Note:4.22

Debt securities issued

Particul As on As on
articutars 31st Ashad 2081 31st Ashadh 2080

Debt securities issued designated at fair value

through profit or loss - -

Debt securities issued at amortised cost - -

Total - -

Note:4.23

Subordinated liabilities

Particul As on As on
arficuiars 31st Ashad 2081 31st Ashadh 2080

Redeemable preference shares - -

Irredemable cummulative preference
shares(liabilities component) - -
Other - -

Total - -
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SWAROJGAR LAGHUBITTA BITTIYA SANSTHA LIMITED

Notes to the financial statements for the Year Ended 31st Ashad 2081

Note:4.24
. (Figures in
Share capital NPR)
Particular As on Ason
cutars 31st Ashad 2081  31st Ashadh 2080
Ordinary shares 671,104,993.00 627,200,928.00
Convetible preference share(Equity
component) - -
Irredemable preference share(Equity
component) - -
Perpetual debt(Equity component only) - -
Total 671,104,993.00 627,200,928.00
Note:4.24.1
Ordinary shares
Particul As on As on
articulars 31st Ashad 2081  31st Ashadh 2080
Authorized capital:
ordinary share of Rs.100 each 800,000,000.00 800,000,000.00
Issued capital:
ordinary share of Rs.100 each 690,682,293.00 627,200,928.00
Subscribed and paid of capital:
ordinary share of Rs.100 each 671,104,993.00 627,200,928.00
Total 671,104,993.00 627,200,928.00
Note:4.24.2
Ordinary share ownership
) As on 31st Ashad 2081 As on 31st Ashadh 2080
Particulars
Percent Amount Percent Amount
Domestic ownership(promoter) 54.26% 364,141,569.20 54.26% 340,319,223.53
Nepal Government
"A" class licensed institutions
Other licensed institutions
Other institutions 0.65% 4,362,182.45 0.65% 4,076,806.03
Other 53.61% 359,779,386.75 53.61% 336,242,417.50
Domestic ownership(public) 45.74% 306,963,423.80 45.74% 286,881,704.47
Nepal Government
"A" class licensed institution
Other licensed institutions
Other institutions
Other 45.74% 306,963,423.80 45.74% 286,881,704.47
Foreign ownership Promoter
Foreign ownership public - -
Total 100.00% 671,104,993.00 100.00% 627,200,928.00
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Share Details of Person/Grop/Film/Company holding 0.5% or more share out of Paid Up Capital NRS 671,104,993

S.N Name % No. of Shares Amount

1 [ SHYAM PRASAD KHATIWADA 1.95 130,840.00 13,084,000.00

2 | SHIVA KAMAL GURUNG 1.65 110,575.00 11,057,500.00

3 | GANESH SUBEDI 1.51 101,500.00 10,150,000.00

4 | SAGAR RAJ JOSHI 1.51 101,018.00 10,101,800.00

5 | ANITA BARAL 1.34 90,174.00 9,017,400.00

6 | DEEPAK KUMAR SHRESTHA 1.26 84,624.00 8,462,400.00

7 | UDAY RAJ KHATIWADA 1.25 84,030.00 8,403,000.00

8 | SASHIKANTA AGRAWAL 1.2 80,779.00 8,077,900.00

9 | MADHAV BHANDARI 0.98 65,672.00 6,567,200.00
10 | SAROJINI SHRESTHA 0.95 63,651.00 6,365,100.00
11 | RENU KARKI 0.91 61,359.00 6,135,900.00
12 | SUBHASH DIXIT 0.91 61,135.00 6,113,500.00
13 | ROSHAN SUBEDI 0.87 58,157.00 5,815,700.00
14 | BASHANTA KC 0.87 58,141.00 5,814,100.00
15 | GAURI SHRESTHA 0.84 56,438.00 5,643,800.00
16 | RUCHILA UPRETY 0.82 55,064.00 5,506,400.00
17 | HOMA KANTA CHAULAGAI 0.74 49,373.00 4,937,300.00
18 | PRAKASH PANT 0.69 46,158.00 4,615,800.00
19 | BINITA ADHIKARI 0.68 45,876.00 4,587,600.00
20 | NEIGHBOURHOOD SOCIETY SERVICE CENTER 0.65 43,763.00 4,376,300.00
21 | BIMALA JOSHI 0.65 43,626.00 4,362,600.00
22 | MADAN KUMAR DANGOL 0.65 43,625.00 4,362,500.00
23 | Nilam Kumar Singh Dangol 0.63 42,127.00 4,212,700.00
24 | GYANENDRA PRASAD PANDE 0.59 39,912.00 3,991,200.00
25 | PUSHPA JOSHI 0.59 39,845.00 3,984,500.00
26 | Komananda Adhikari 0.59 39,731.00 3,973,100.00
27 | ARJUN PANT 0.59 39,547.00 3,954,700.00
28 | KALPANA JOSHI SHRESTHA 0.58 38,995.00 3,899,500.00
29 | BISHNU KATTEL 0.56 37,465.00 3,746,500.00
30 | BEGRAJ JOSHEE 0.55 36,814.00 3,681,400.00
31 | ANU SHRESTHA 0.54 36,199.00 3,619,900.00
32 | TANKA MANI KAFLE 0.53 35,590.00 3,559,000.00
33 | HOM NATH SHARMA CHAULAGAIN 0.51 34,024.00 3,402,400.00
34 | GUNA RAJ JOSHEE 0.51 33,916.00 3,391,600.00
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Note:4.25
Reserves

Following reserves are maintained by the Microfinance.

Particulars As on As on
v 31st Ashad 2081 31st Ashadh 2080
Statutory General Reserve 172,867,196.25 150,586,062.71

Capital reserve - -
Exchange equalization reserve -
Investment adjustment reserve 10,000.00 10,000.00
Corporate social responsibility reserve

3,153,699.91 2,215,349.23
Client Protection Fund
25,995,168.78 36,460,925.70
Capital redemption reserve - -
Assets revaluation reserve - -
Regulatory reserve
37,457,007.40 49,948,330.25
Fair value reserve - -
Dividend equalization reserve - -
Staff Training Fund
3,942,286.24 3,612,029.74
Deferred Tax Reserve - -
Actuarial Gain
1,880,444.24 1,086,669.44
Special reserve - -
Debenture redemption reserve - -
Other reserve - -
Total 245,305,802.82 243,919,367.07
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Note No. 4.26
Contingent Liabilities and Commitment (Figures
in NPR)
As on As on
Particulars 3lst 3lst
Ashad Ashadh
2081 2080
Contingent Liabilities - -
Undrawn and undisbursed facilities - -
Capital commitment - -
Lease commitment - -
Litigation - -
others - -
Total - -
Note No. 4.26.1
Capital commitments
Capital expenditure approved by relevant authority of the Microfinance but provision has not been
made in financial statements
As on As on
Particulars 3lst 3lst
Ashad Ashadh
2081 2080
Capital commitments in relation to
Property and Equipment
Approved and contracted for - -
Approved but not contracted for - -
Sub Total - -
Capital commitments in relation to Intangible assets
Approved and contracted for - -
Approved but not contracted for - -
Sub Total - -
Total - -
Note No. 4.26.2
Lease Commitments
As on As on
. 31st 31st
Particulars Ashad Ashadh
2081 2080

Not later than 1 year - -
Later than 1 year but not later than 5 years - -
Later than 5 years - -
Grand Total - -

Note No. 4.26.3

Litigation

The Microfinance is currently facing a tax litigation in the Revenue Tribunal against the Inland Revenue Department, for which
it has made a deposit of NRs. 400,000 in the Tribunal. The management expects that the outflow of economic resources
embodying economic benefits for the settlement of the litigation is remote.
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Note: 4.27
Interest Income

(Figures in NPR)

Interest income include interest income on loan and advance, investment securities except on those investment securities measure
at fair value through profit or loss, cash and cash equivalent, due from BFIs, loan and advances to staff etc. Details presented as

follows:
Particulars For the year ended 31st | For the year ended
Ashad 2081 31st Ashadh 2080
Cash and cash equivalents 2,838,491.25 4,381,148.04

Due from Nepal Rastra Bank

Placement with Banks and Financial Institutions

Loans and Advances to Financial Institutions

Loans and advances to customers

1,094,097,098.08 1,029,961,261.06

Investment securities

Loans and advances to staff

Other

Total Interest Income

1,096,935,589.33 1,034,342,409.10

Note: 4.28
Interest Expense

Interest expenses include interest accrued on deposits collected and debt securities issued. Details presented as follows:

Particulars

For the year ended 31st
Ashad 2081

For the year ended
31st Ashadh 2080

Due to Bank and Financial Institutions

Due to Nepal Rastra Bank

Deposits from customers

303,565,617.00 283,126,050.02

Borrowing

363,892,083.51 381,200,125.93

Debt securities issued

Subordinated liabilities

Other

3,821,276.62 4,769,760.03

Total Interest Expenses

671,278,977.13 669,095,935.98

Note: 4.29
Fees and Commission Income

Fees and commission income include management fee,

Details presented as follows:

service charges, syndication fee, forex transaction commission etc.

Particulars

For the year ended 31st
Ashad 2081

For the year ended
31st Ashadh 2080

Loan Administration fees

Service fees

76,038,640.00 62,726,645.90

Commitment fees

Card Issuance fees

pepayment and swap fees

Remittance fees 450.00 4,310.00
Brokerage fees
Other Fees and Commission Income 8,318,501.81 5,451,229.93

Total Fees and Commission Income

84,357,591.81 68,182,185.83
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Note: 4.30

Fees and Commission Expense

Fees and commission expense include ATM management fees, card related fees, remittance fees & commissions/TT/swift charges
etc.

Details presented as follows:

For the year ended For the year ended

Particulars 31st Ashad 2081 31st Ashadh 2080

Brokerage - -

ATM management fees - -
VISA/Master card fees - -
Guarantee commission - -
DD/TT/Swift fees - -
Remittance fees and commission - -
Other Fees and Commission Expense 4,199,133.00 2,852,703.00
Total Fees and Commission Expenses 4,199,133.00 2,852,703.00

Note: 4.31
Net trading income

For the year ended For the year ended

Particulars 31st Ashad 2081 31st Ashadh 2080

Changes in fair value of trading assets - -

Gain/loss on disposal of trading assets - -

Interest income on trading assets - -

Dividend income on trading assets - -

Gain/Loss Foreign Exchange Transaction - -
Other - -
Total Net Trading Income - -

Note: 4.32
Other operating income

For the year ended For the year ended

Particulars 31st Ashad 2081 31st Ashadh 2080

Foreign Exchange Revaulation Gain - -
Gain/loss on sale of investment Securities - -
Fair value gain/loss on investment properties - -
Dividend on equity instruments - -

Gain/loss on sale of property and equipment - 15,685.63

Gain/loss on sale of investment property - -

Operating lease income - -

Gain on Bargain Purchase - -

Gain/Loss on sale of gold and silver - -
Other 2,239,976.03 2,958,134.85
Total 2,239,976.03 2,973,820.48
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Note: 4.33
Impairment Charge/(reversal) for loan and other losses
Detail presented as follows:

Particulars

For the year ended
31st Ashad 2081

For the year ended
31st Ashadh 2080

Impairment charge/(reversal) on loan and advances to B/FIs

Impairment charge/(reversal) on loan and advances to customer

58,306,591.87

55,870,929.87

Impairment charge/(reversal) on financial Investment

Impairment charge/(reversal) on placement with bank and
financial institutions

Impairment charge/(reversal) on property and equipment

Impairment charge/(reversal) on goodwill and intangible assets

Impairment charge/(reversal) on investment properties

Impairment charge/(reversal) on current assets

10,120,000.00

Total

68,426,591.87

55,870,929.87

Impairment on current assets is represented by impairment of receivables from Branch Manager of Hetauda Branch. This
imparment is charged to give effect of the amount misappropriated by and receivable from the Branch Manager of the Hetauda

Branch of NRS. 1,01,20,000.00. during the F.Y. 2080-81 which was detected during the month of Poush 2081.

Note: 4.34
Personnel Expense

All expenses related to employees of the Microfianance are included under this head. Details presented as follows:

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31st Ashad 2081 31st Ashadh 2080

Salary 91,408,054.43 97,034,158.38
Allowances 79,841,363.00 80,167,491.61
Gratuity expenses 232,731.00 658,710.00
Provident fund - -
Social Security Fund 18,535,905.99 18,355,991.99
Uniform -
Training & Development Expense 4,985,793.00 3,739.911.50
Leave encashment 2,068,973.00 4,996,376.00
Medical -
Employee Insurance 156,126.56 56,112.00
Employees Incentive - -
Cash-settled share-based payments - -
Pension Expense - -
Voluntary Resignation scheme - -
Finance expenses under NFRS 2,789,153.00 2,240,665.00
Other Expenses Related to Staff - -
Sub-Total 200,018,099.98 207,249,416.48
Employees Bonus 19,284,780.13 13,092,611.22
Total 219,302,880.11 220,342,027.70
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Note: 4.35
Other operating expense

Operating expense other than those relating to personnel expense are recognized are presented in this head.

Details presented as follows:

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31st Ashad 2081 31st Ashadh 2080
Directors' fee 890,500.00 1,016,000.00
Directors' expense 755,486.54 726,674.00
Auditors' remuneration 1,874,000.00 1,983,000.00
Other audit related expense 185,848.00 53,629.00
Professional and legal expense - 294,000.00
Office administration expense 49,261,184.50 49,828,730.67
Lease expense on short-term lease 2,096,110.00 1,177,340.00
Depreciation on Right-of-use assets - -
Operating expense of investment properties - -
Corporate Social Responsibility Expense 175,706.00 671,349.00

Onerous lease provision

Other Miscellaneous Operating Expenses

12,031,596.13

12,719,674.00

Total

67,270,431.17

68,470,396.67

Note No 4.35.1 Office Administation Expenses

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31st Ashad 2081 31st Ashadh 2080
Light Electicity and Water Expenses 2,149,063.00 2,025,141.00
Repair and maintenance
(a) Building - -
(b) Vehicles 199,829.00 232,608.00
(c) Computer and accessories 152,602.00 175,874.00
(d) Office Equipment and furniture 94,848.00 55,147.00
(e) Other 102,697.50 185,288.00
Insurance 590,828.04 1,656,365.30
Postage, Telex, Telephone, Fax 7,328,622.19 5,186,767.06
Printing and stationery 4,213,639.91 3,323,122.50
News paper, Books and Journals 3,405.00 21,196.00
Advertisement 299,955.00 301,333.00
Donation

Security Expense

Deposit and Loan Guarantee Premium

24,308,318.37

27,236,697.04

Travelling Allowance and Expenses 3,762,466.00 4,308,807.00
Entertainment
Annual/special general meeting expense 321,761.00 496,237.00
Other -Annual Function Expenses
Other -Office Expenses
(a) Miscellaneous 5,166,435.49 4,082,164.77
(b) Lunch Expenses 396,376.00 422,450.00
(c) Fines and Penalties 50,338.00 16,200.00
(d) RTS Expenses 120,000.00 103,333.00
Total 49,261,184.50 49,828,730.67
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Note No 4.35.2 Other Miscellaneous Operating Expenses

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended

31st Ashad 2081 31st Ashadh 2080
Technical Fee 357,342.63 -
Fuel 7,461,615.50 7,960,337.00
Share Issue Expenses - 547,876.00
Software Hosting Charge 3,475,428.00 3,558,576.00
Renewal Fee 737,210.00 652,885.00
Total 12,031,596.13 12,719,674.00
Note: 4.36

Depreciation & Amortisation

Depreciation is the systematic allocation of the depreciable amount of an asset over its useful life. Amortization is the systematic
allocation of the depreciable amount of an intangible asset over its useful life. Depreciation and amortization include

depreciation on plant and equipment & amortization of intangible assets.

Details presented as follows:

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31st Ashad 2081 31st Ashadh 2080
Depreciation on Property and Equipment 7,048,389.34 7,409,374.06
Depreciation on Right of use assets 15,327,692.36 15,178,613.00
Amortisation of intangible assets 185,319.12 376,667.24
Total 22,561,400.82 22,964,654.30
Note: 4.37
Non operating income
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31st Ashad 2081 31st Ashadh 2080

Recovery of loan written off

Other Income

43,648,074.08

51,931,733.05

Total

43,648,074.08

51,931,733.05

Note: 4.38
Non Operating Expense

The incomes that have no direct relationship with the operation of transactions are presented under this head.

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended

31st Ashad 2081 31st Ashadh 2080
Loan Written Off - -
Redundancy provision - -
Expenses of restructuring - -
Other expense : Merger & Acquisition related 578,796.00 -
Total 578,796.00 -
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Note: 4.39
Income Tax Expense

Particulars

For the year ended
31st Ashad 2081

For the year ended
31st Ashadh 2080

Current Tax Expense

Current year

55,512,415.24

51,944,439.77

Adjustment for prior years 6,984,633.90 5,835,747.70
Deferred tax expense
Origination and reversal of temporary differences (339,695.69) (16,228,467.68)
Changes in tax rate -
Recognition of previously unrecognised tax losses -
Total income tax expense 62,157,353.45 41,551,719.79
Note : 4.39.1
Reconciliation of tax expense as per taxable profit and accounting profit

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended

31st Ashad 2081 31st Ashadh 2080

Profit before tax 173,563,021.15 117,833,500.94
Tax amount at tax rate of 30% 52,068,906.35 35,350,050.28
Tax effect of employee benefit expense 1,019,077.89 1,559,896.20
Effect of Depreciation expense (70,856.85) (41,204.93)
Effect of Repair and Improvement expense 32,853.89 40,095.05
Effect of Interest Income Recognised as per Accrual Basis - 15,264,711.30
Effect of Lease accounting (257,091.26) (215,447.65)
Carried forward loss (384,287.98) (384,287.98)
Other expenses disallowed as per tax 3,103,813.20 4,860.00
Total income tax expense 55,512,415.24 51,578,672.28
Effective tax rate 31.98% 43.77%
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5. Disclosure and Additional Information
5.1 Risk Management & Risk Management Famework

Risk is inherent in the Financial Institution's activities but is managed through a process of ongoing identification,
measurement and monitoring, subject to risk limits and other controls. This process of risk management is critical to the
Financial Institution's continuing profitability and each indviduals within the Financial Institution is accountable for the risk
exposures relating to his or her responsbilities. The microfinance is mainly exposed to;

1. Liquidity Risk

2. Interest Rate Risk
3. CreditRisk

4. Operational Risk

The Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the microfinance's risk management
famework. Risk Management Committee is responsible for overall risk management of the microfinance which includes
managing, assesing, identifying, monitoring and reducing pertinent macro and micro-economics level business risks that
could interfere with microfinance's objectives and goals and whether the microfinance is in substantial compliance with its
internal operating policies and other applicable regulations and procedures, external, legal, regulatory or contractual
requirements on a continuous basis. Further, Risk management committee ensures integration of all major risks in capital
assessment process. Risk management policies and systems are reviewed annually to reflect changes in market conditions,
products and services offered. The microfinance, through its training and management standards and procedures,
continuously updates and maintains a disciplined and constructive control environment, in which all employees are
assigned and made to understand their respective roles and responsibilities.

5.1.1 Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the microfinance will encounter difficulties in meeting its financial commitments that are
settled by delivering cash or other financial assets. Hence the microfinance may be unable to meet its payment obligations
when they fall due under both normal and stress circumstance. To limit this risk , management has arranged diversified
funding sources in addition to its core deposit base, and adopted a policy of continuously managing assets with liquidity in
mind and of monitoring future cash flows and liquidity on a daily basis. The microfinance has developed internal control
process and contingency plans for managing liquidity risk. This incorporates an assessment of expected cash flows and the
availability of high-grade collateral which could be used to secure additional funding ifrequired.

The microfinance maintains a portfolio of highly marketable and diverse assets assumed to be easily liquidated in the event
ofan unforeseen interruption of expected cash flow. The microfinance also has committed lines of credit facilities that could
be utilized to meet liquidity needs. Further, the microfinance maintains a statutory deposit with in "A" Class financial
institution equal to Approx 10.12% of the member deposit and as cash reserve ratio equal to Approx 0.63% of the member's
deposit and lending from different institutions which also mitigate the bar set by Nepal Rastra Bank. In accordance with the
microfinance's policy, the liquidity position is assessed and managed under a variety of scenarios, giving due consideration
to stress factors relating to both the market in general and specific to the financial institution. The most important of these is
to maintain the required ration of liquid assets to liabilities, to meet the regulatory requirement. Liquid assets consist of cash,
short-term bank deposits and liquid debt securities available for immediate sale.

5.1.2 Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the potential that a change in overall rate will reduce the value of a bond or other fixed-rate investment.
The Microfinance will take the following measures to minimize the risk arising from interest rate:

a. Only assets and liabilities affected by changes in interest rate has been included in the assets and liabilities.

b. When analyzing the differences in the situation where the payment term of assets and liabilities does not match, the
amount of cash balance and non-payment of interest has been included.

c. In order to manage and minimize the interest rate risk, the microfinance has prepared quarterly (October, January, April
and July mid ) details and submitted to the microfinance supervision Department of Nepal Rastra Bank within fifteen days
after the end of the quarter.

5.1.3 Credit Risk

The risk of potential loss because of counterparty failures to meet its obligations to pay the credit obtained from
microfinance as per agreed terms is known as credit risk. A loan application from which has been used by microfinance,
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includes all the relevant data and information required for assessment of borrowers' background, business and experience,
financial statement of borrower, credibility, sector wise analysis etc.

5.1.4 Operational Risk

The risk that arries during day to day operations of the microfinance is called operating risk. In context of microfinance,
small but large number of transactions has been done, decentralized working methods has been adopted, more focus has
been given on area expansion for geo-graphy versatility, priority has been given to cost reduction, due to lack of integrated
information system, expansion of program in rural areas with lack of infrastructure and lack of appropriate technology to
provide service as per needs of customer, there is always a possibility of operation risk in the program. The microfinance has
arrange the necessary staff to carry out various responsibilities for daily operation. All the employees have to carry out their
post responsibilities in the working process within the policy rules specified by the microfinance. But sometimes due to
negligence of the stakeholders and personal interest attached with them, the microfinance is at risk when it goes beyond the
policy rules. This type of risk is likely to reduce the profitability of microfinance and much more increase in reputational risk
of microfinance. Since the operational risk is due to internal factors, this risk can be reduced only if the internal control
system is strengthened.

5.1.5 Fair Value of Financial Assets and Liabilities

Fair value is a market based measurement, not an entity specific measurement. For some assets and liabilities, observable
market transactions or market information might be available. For other assets and liabilities, observable market transaction
and market information might not be available. However, the objective of a fair value measurement in both cases are the
same to estimate the price at which an orderly transaction to sell the assets or to transfer the liability would take place
between market participants at the measurement date under current market conditions (i.e., an exit price at the measurement
date from the perspective of a market participant that holds the asset or owes the liability).

Fair values are determined according to the following hierarchy:

Level 1:-

Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access at
the measurement date. Held for trading and available for sale investments have been recorded using Level 1 inputs.

Level 2:-

Level 2 inputs are inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the assets or liabilities
either directly or indirectly.

Level 3:-
Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for asset and liability.

The following table shows an analysis financial instruments recorded at fair value by level of the fair value hierarchy:

. 2080.081 2079.080
Particulars
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 | Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Financial Instrument available for sales
Quoted Equities
Unquoted Equities
Centre for Microfinance Pvt Ltd 10,000.00 10,000.00
(100 ordinary shares @ NPR.100 Paid up)
Nepal Finsoft Company Ltd
(10,000 Ordinary Shares @ NPR.100 Paid up) 1,000,000.00 1,000,000.00
Quoted Mutual Funds -

Total - 1,010,000.00 - - 1,010,000.00 -
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5.2 Capital Management

The Microfinance's capital management policies and practices support its business strategy and ensure that it is adequately
capitalized to withstand even in several macroeconomic downturns. The microfinance is a licenced institutions providing
financial services therefore it must comply with capital requirement of Nepal Rastra Bank.

(D) Qualitative disclosures

Nepal Rastra Bank has directed the microfinance to develop own internal policy, procedure and structure to manage all
material risk inherent in business for assessing capital adequacy in relation to the risk profiles as well as strategies for
maintaining capital levels. This includes basic requirements of having good governance, efficient process of managing all
material risks and an effective regime for assessing and maintaining adequate capital. The microfinance has BODs approved
risk management policies for proper governance as guided by Nepal Rastra Bank.

ii) Quantitative disclosures

Capital structure and capital Adequncy
As on 31st Ashad, 2081

* Tire 1 Capital and a breakdown of its components:

Particulars

Amount(NPR.)

Paid up Equity Share Capital

Irredeemable Non-cumulative preferance shares
Shares Premium

Proposed Bonus Equity Shares

Statutory General Reserves

Retained Earnings

Unaudited current year cumulative profit
Special Reserve Fund

Capital Adjustment Reserves

Dividend Equalization Reserves

Capital Redemption Reserve Fund

Deferred Tax Reserve

Bargain purchase gain recognized

Less: Goodwill

Less: Intrangible Assets

Less: Deferred Tax Assets

Less: Investment in equity of licenced financial Institutions

Less: Investment in equity of institutions in excess of limits

Less: Reciprocal crossholidings
Less: Others Deductions

Less: Investment in equity of institutions with financial interests

Less: Investments arising out of underwrritings commitments
Less: The amount of Land purchased for self-use without following the instructions of NRB.

671,104,993.00

172,867,196.25
99,157,522.24

(163,853.24)
(12,795,662.07)

(15,779,500.00)

Total Tire 1 Capital

914,390,696.18

Tire 2 Capital and a breakdown of its components:

Particulars

Amount(NPR.)

Cumulative and /or Redeemable Preference Shares
Subordinated Term Debt

Hybrid Capital Instrument

General Loan loss provision

Exchange Equalization Reserve

Investment Adjustment Reserves

Assets Revaluation Reserves

Special Reserve Fund

81,326,623.35

10,000.00

Total Tire 2 Capital

81,336,623.35

Total Qualifying Capital

Particulars

Amount(NPR.)

Core Capital (Tire 1)
Supplementary Capital (Tire 2)

914,390,696.18
81,336,623.35

Total Capital Fund

995,727,319.53
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Statement of Risk Weighted Assets (RWA)
As on 31st Ashad, 2081

A. On- Balance Sheet Items

Current Period

S Weight
S.N Description (%g) Amount(NPR) RWA
1 Cash Balance 0 2,317,972.00 -
2 Gold (Tradable) 0 - -
3 | NRB Balance 0 2,950,000.00 -
4 | Investment to Govt. Bond 0 - -
5 Investment to NRB Bond 0 - -
6 | Loan Againts Own FD 0 - -
7 | Loan Againts Govt. bond 0 - -
8 | Accured Interest on Govt. Bond 0 - -
9 Investment to Youth and Small Enterpreneure Self-employment Fund 0 - -
10 | Balance on domestic banks and financial institutions 20 529,350,532.75 105,870,106.55
11 | Loan againts other's and financial institution's FD 20 - -
12 | Foreign bank balance 20 - -
13 | Money at Call 20 - -
14 | Loan against internationally rated bank guarantee 20 - -
15 | Investment to internationally rated banks 20 - -
16 | Inter-bank Lending 20 - -
17 | Investment on shares/debentures/bonds 100 1,010,000.00 1,010,000.00
18 | Other Investments 100 - -
19 | Loans & Advances, bill purchase/discount 100 8,225,774,339.00 | 8,225,774,339.00
20 | Fixed assets 100 39,122,990.91 39,122,990.91
21 | Net interest receivables (Total IR-8-Interest Suspense) 100 78,893,465.53 78,893,465.53
22 | Net Non-Banking Assets 100 - -
23 | Others Assets (Except advance payment on tax) 100 45,868,714.63 45,868,714.63
24 | Real estate / residential housing loans exceeding the limits 100 - -
Total On-Balance-sheet Items (A) 8,925,288,014.82 | 8,496,539,616.62
B. Off- Balance Sheet Items
S.N Description Weight Current Period
(%) Amount(NPR.) RWA
1 | Bills Collection 0 - -
2 | Forward foreign exchange contract 10 - -
3 | L/C with maturity less than six months (Outstanding Value) 20 - -
4 | Gurantee againts International rated bank's counter guarantee 20 - -
5 | L/C with maturity more than six months (Outstanding value) 50 - -
6 | Bid Bond, performance bond ande underwriting 50 - -
7 | Loan sale with repurchase aggrement 50 - -
8 | Advance payment guarantee 100 - -
9 | Financial and other guarantee 100 - -
10 | Irrevocable Loan commitment 100 - -
11 | Possible liabilities for income tax 100 - -
12 | All type of possible liabilities including acceptance 100 - -
13 | Rediscounted bills 100 - -
14 | Unpaid portion of partly paid share investment 100 - -
15 | Unpaid guarantee claims 200 - -
16 | Amount to be maintained for operational risk (2% of Total Assets) 100 178,505,760.30 178,505,760.30

Total Off-Balance sheet Items (B)

178,505,760.30

178,505,760.30

Total Risk Weighted Assets (A+B)

8,675,045,376.91

| C. Total Capital Fund (Tire 1 Capital + Tire 2 Capital) 995,727,319.53 |
D. Minimum capital fund to be maintained based on Risk Weighted Assets
1 [ Minimum Capital Fund Required (8% of RWA) 694,003,630.15
2 | Minimum Core Capital Required (4% of RWA) 347,001,815.08
3 | Capital Fund Maintained (in %) 11.48%
4 | Core Capital Maintained (in %) 10.54%

iii) Compliance with External Requirement

The Microfinance has complied with externally imposed capital requirements to which it is subject and there are no such

consequence where the microfinance has not complied with those requirement.
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Note 5.4 Operating segment Information

5.4.1.General information

A component of the Microfinance that engages in business activities from which it may earn revenues and incur losses,
including revenue and expenses that relate to transactions with any other components of the microfinance, whose operating
results are reviewed regularly by the management to make decisions about resources allocation to each segment and assess
its performance, and for which discrete financial information is available is termed as operating segment.

Based on the nature of the business, transactions, products and services, the management have identified seven reporting

segments of the microfinance for the purpose of financial reporting:

e Koshi Province
* Madhesh Province

» Bagmati Province

e Gandaki Province

e Lumbini Province

e Karnali Province

e Far West Province

5.4.2 Information about profit or loss, assets and liabilities

Particulars | Koshi Province Madhesh Bagmati Gandaki Lumbini Karnali Sudurpaschim Total
Province Province Province Province Province Province
Interest Revenue | 47.745775.67 | 336,140213.90 | 40354912053 | 94.475,006.64 | 120.226,820.45 | 1642945692 | 4510820837 | 10726746044
8
Interest Expense | (6,196,236.00) | (102,785,691.00) | (489,296,601.13) | (26,547,494.00) | (36,274,889.00) | (1,729,380.00) | (8,448,686.00) | (671,278,977.13)
'F'gtersegmem - 5770402 | 425796,173.92 - 774,275.87 - - 426,628,153.81
evenue
'E”)t(gr:rfs‘»’eme”t (31,216,546.11) | (129,585,863.81) | (139,174,900.58) | (39,534,743.41) | (55,264,014.24) | (9,611,006.43) | (22,241,079.23) | (426,628,153.81)
g:f,g:j;es‘ 10,332,993.56 | 103,826,363.11 | 200,873,792.74 | 28,392,769.23 | 38,462,195.08 | 5,089,070.49 | 14,418,443.14 | 401,395,627.35
2;%2;‘:332 and | sa304957) | (1.090,030.17) | (2829.886.68) | (480340.86) | (74239042) | (195860.35) | (411.241.41) | (7.233708.46)
Other allocable
income/(expense | (21,116,435.45) | (54,324,042.16) | (16,813,214.73) | (16,545,818.49) | (30,534,530.03) | (2,543,098.77) | (10,711,284.89) | (152,588,424.52)
s)
Segment
E’°ﬂ”('.°ss) (11,367,391.46) | 47,512,281.78 | 181,230,691.33 | 11,366,609.88 | 7,185274.63 | 2,350,111.37 | 3,295916.84 | 241,573,494.37
efore income
tax
Unallocated income/expenses: (74,754,025.95)
Interest recognised on accrual basis 24,260,984.80
Staff Bonus (19,284,780.13)
Corporate Social Responsibility (175,706.00)
Employee benefit expense- effect of NFRS accounting 1,086,083.21
Effect of NFRS accounting 856,970.85
Profit/Loss before income tax as per SoPL 173,563,021.15
::Se'l‘:"t 422,213,304.00| 2,939,266,303.99| 3,515,650,772.57| 761,377,654.72| 980,450,596.67| 142,744,410.28| 359,630,083.51| 9,130,342,125.74
Sggmt‘::: 433,580,695.47| 2,891,754,022.23| 3,416,569,551.03| 750,011,044.84| 982,274,321.02| 140,394,298.91| 356,334,166.68| 8,970918,100.18
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5.4.2. Measurement of operating segment profit or loss, assets and liabilities

The Microfinance has determined segments based on the provinces.

5.4.3. Information about geographical areas

Revenue from following geographical areas:

Areas Amount (NPR)
Koshi Province 47,745,775.67
Madhesh Province 336,140,213.90
Bagmati Province 403,549,120.53
Gandaki Province 94,475,006.64
Lumbini Province 129,226,822.45
Karnali Province 16,429,456.92
Far West Province 45,108,208.37
Total 1,072,674,604.48

5.4.4 Information about major customers

The Microfinance does not have any customer, which generate more than 10% of the entity's revenue.

5.5 Share options and share based payment

The microfinance does not extend any share options and share based payments to any of its employee. Thus during the
reporting period the microfinance does not have any transactions that are to be accouted as per NFRS 2 "Share - Based

Payment".

5.6 Contingent liabilities and commitment

Comprehensive disclosure of the contingent liabilities and commitments are made on Note 4.26.

5.7 Related Party Disclosures

5.7.1. List of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel

The Microfinance has carried out transactions in the ordinary course of business on an arm's length basis with parties who
are defined as Related Parties including Key Management Person (KMP) as required by Nepal Accounting Standard 24
“Related Party Disclosures” the disclosure of related party has been made as under:The following parties have been
identified as the related party transaction as per NAS 24:

. . . Date of
S.N. Name Relationship Date of Appointment Retirement
1 | Mr. Gyanendra Prasad Pande Charmain 2079.12.11 -
2 | Mr. Uday Raj Khatiwada Director 2079.12.11 -
3 | Mr. Tri Bikram Pandey Director 2079.12.11 -
4 | Mr. Krishna Banjade Director 2078.07.27 -
5 | Mr. Tej Datta Khakural Director 2078.07.27 -
6 | Mr. Samar Dhakal Director 2078.07.27 -
7 | Mrs. Hira Devi Bista Director 2079.07.22 -
8 | Mr. Manoj Krishna Uprety Chief Executive Officer 2079.09.04 -
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5.7.2. Transactions with and Payments to Directors & Key Managerial Personnel
Board of Directors Allowances and Facilities

S.N. Particulars No of Meetings | Sitting Fees (NPR.)
1 | Board Meeting 17 730,000.00
2 | Audit Committee Meeting 5 32,500.00
3 | Risk Management Committee 4 52,000.00
4 | Anti-Money Laundering Committee 4 26,000.00
5 | Staff Benefits and Facilities Committee 2 13,000.00
6 | Others 2 37,000.00
Total 34 890,500.00
Further, the following expenses are made for Board of Directors in the reporting period.
S.N Particulars Amounts
1 | Communication & News Paper 168,000.00
2 | Air & Bus Fare Expenses 142,468.54
3 | Tiffin & Miscellaneous Expenses 246,669.00
4 | Training & Education 198,349.00
Total 755,486.54
Chief Executive Officer’s Emoluments and Facilities
S.N. Particulars Amount (NPR.)
1 | Short Term Employee Benefits 2,139,067.88
2 | Retirement Benefits -
3 | Social Security Fund Benefit 168,000.00
4 | Others -
Total 2,307,067.88

In addition to above, the Microfinance also provide other facilities like telephone facility of corporate SIM card amounting
NPR 400 Per Month & Traveling Allowance (Per day NPR 650) as per the approved employee facilities of the
Microfinance.

5.8 Merger and Acquisition

In the Fiscal Year 2077/78, the Microfinance has acquired "D" Class financial institution Licensed by NRB, Janakpur
Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd. with due approval from Special General Meeting of the Microfinance and from Nepal
Restra Bank and started the joint transaction from 25th Ashwin, 2077.

For acquisition the Microfinance has issued 2,43,250 number of equity shares at swap ratio of 100 : 70 (70 shares of
Swarogjar Lagubitya Bittiya Sanstha Limited for every 100 shares of Janakpur Laghubitta )

In the Fiscal Year 2079/80, the Microfinance has signed Merger MOU with "D" class financial institution Licenced by
NRB, Samata Gharelu Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd. Later on, the Board of Directors of microfinance has decided
not to carry forward the process of merger with Samata Gharelu Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd due to the current
situation of microfinances and the risk factor related with the situation.

Currently, the Microfinance is in search of suitable and appropriate partner for the merger purpose.

5.9 Additional Disclousers of non consolidated entities.
The Microfinance does not have any subsidiaries & accociates. So, additional disclosure is not required.

5.10. Events after reporting date

No events requiring the adjustment as per NAS 10 "Events occurring after Reporting Period" are observed after the
reporting period.

5.11. Rules of conduct to be followed by Directors

The Directors of this Microfinance has fully complied the provision of Direction No. 6/079 (1) of Unified Directives
issued to the Microfinance Institutions by Nepal Rastra Bank.
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SWAROJGAR LAGHUBITTA BITTIYA SANSTHA LIMITED
Comparision Un-Audited and Audited
Statement of Financial Position FY 2080.081

As per Un- As per Audited Variance
Particulars Audited Financial Financial S Reason for Variance
Statement Statement In Amount In %

ASSETS
TDS deducted by BFI adjustment after

Cash and Cash Equivalents 496,290,423.71 486,136,618.17 | (10,153,805.54) | -2.05% |confirmation & Current assets created for Bank
balance of Hetauda Branch.

Statutory Balances and Due from 0

Nepal Rastra Bank 48,481,886.58 48,481,886.58 - 0.00%

Plagement with Bank and Financial B ) 0.00%

Institutions

Derivative Financial Instruments - - 0.00%

Other Trading Assets - - 0.00%

Loans anq Advance to MFls and ) ) 0.00%

Cooperatives

Loans and Advances to Customers | 807139700203 | 807174562683 | 34862480 | 0,003 | mPament charge adjusted by Nepal Rasta

Investment Securities 1,000,000.00 1,000,000.00 - 0.00%

Current Tax Assets 35,171,855.00 41,567,989.89 6,396,134.89 18.19% | Due to change in Taxable Income for the period

Investment Property - - - 0.00%

Property and Equipment 39,114,678.41 39,122,990.91 8,312.50 0.02% | FA booked lately

Goodwill and Intangible Assets 163,853.24 163,853.24 - 0.00%

Deferred Tax Assets 12,796,155.58 12,795,662.07 (493.51) 0.00% |Deffered Tax Assets created for the year
ROU Assets regroup & impact provided,
receivable booked for Surya Jyoti Insurance,

Other Assets 41491076044 | 4586871463 | 95704519 | 2439 |Crest Microlnsurance & IME - for - accured
commission & FA booked lately and adjusted
with receivable of Insight Tech & current assets
created for Bank balance of Hetauda Branch.

Total Assets 8,749,326,623.99| 8,746,883,342.31|  (2,443,281.67) -0.03%

Liabilities

Due to Bank and Financial : } 0.00%

Institutions

Due to Nepal Ratsra Bank - - 0.00%

Derivative Financial Instrument - - - 0.00%

Deposits from Customers 3,733,553,067.08 | 3,733,553,067.08 - 0.00%

Borrowings 3,858,862,589.21 | 3,858,862,589.21 - 0.00%

Current Tax Liabilities - - - 0.00%

Provisions 54,005.00 10.474,005.00 | 10,120,00000 | 18739.01% [ ~1O%SOn created for Impairement of current

Deferred Tax Liabilities - - 0.00%
Lease Liability regroup & impact provided,
Change in Staff Bonus after change in Operating
Profit, Audit Fee Payable booked, TDS Payable

Other Liabilities 120,514,133.08 128,725,362.96 8,211,229.89 6.81% [adjustment booked, Mobile banking registration
charge payable adjusted, service chagre refund
booked as instructed by NRB and NFRS effects
provided to Staff Gratuity & Staff Leave Payable.

Debt Securities Issued - - 0.00%

Subordinated Liabilities - - 0.00%

Total liabilities 7,7112,983,794.37 | 7,731,315,024.25 | 18,331,229.89 0.24%

Equity

Share Capital 671,104,993.00 671,104,993.00 - 0.00%

Share Premium - - - 0.00%

Retained Earnings 88,311,353.85 99,157,522.24 | 10,846,168.39 [ 12.28% | Reclass and Regroup & Change in Net Income

Reserves 276,926,482.77 | 245305,802.82 | (31,620,679.95) -11.42% | Reclass and Regroup & Change in Net Income

Total Equity 1,036,342,829.62 | 1,015,568,318.06 | (20,774,511.56) | -2.00%

Total Liabilities and Equity 8,749,326,623.99 | 8,746,883,342.31 | (2,443,281.67) -0.03%

16" Annual Report-2080/081 »

g3t arffer gfeae-3050 /059
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Comparision Un-Audited and Audited

Statement of Profit or Loss FY 2080.081

As per Un- As per Audited Variance
Particulars Audited Financial Financial Reason for Variance
Statement Statement In Amount In %
Interest Income 1096,968,029.18 | 1,006,935580.33| (3243085) | 0009 | Overbookedlinterestincome from Bank reversed
& regroup of Interest Income from Staff Advances
Recognition of Interest on Lease Liability as per
Interest Expense 667,420,842.21 | 671,278,977.13 | 3,858,134.92 | 0.58% |NFRS 16 & Interest Expenses booked for short of
TDS on Interest on Deposit
Net interest income 429,547,186.97 | 425,656,612.20 | (3,890,574.77) | -0.91%
Service charge refund as instructed by NRB &
Fees and Commission Income 10779212277 | 8435750181 | (23,434,530.96) | -21.740 |2C0ured agency comission from Surya Jyol
Insurance, Crest Microinsurance & IME remit
booked
Fees and Commission Expense 4,199,133.00 4,199,133.00 - 0.00%
Net Fee and Commission Income 103,592,989.77 80,158,458.81 | (23,434,530.96) | -22.62%
m‘é‘o':f:”s" Fee and Commission 533,140,176.74 | 505,815,071.01 | (27,325105.73)| -5.13%
Net Trading Income - - - 0.00%
Other Operating Income i 223997603 | 223997603 | 000% | fecogniion of Gan on modficaion of ROU
Total Operating Income 533,140,176.74 | 508,055,047.04 | (25,085,129.70)| -4.71%
Impairment Charge/(Reversal) for Loans Impairment charge for current assets of Hetauda
ang Other Losseg 58,655,216.67 68,426,591.87 9,771,375.20 | 16.66% |Branch impaired & Provision expenses adjusted
by Nepal Rastra Bank
Net Operating Income 474,484,960.07 | 439,628,455.17 | (34,856,504.90) [ -7.35%
Operating Expense
Effects of Acturial Valuation of Long term Staff
Personnel Expenses 223,475,008.34 | 219,302,880.11 | (4,172,128.23) | -1.87% |Obligations and Change in Staff Bonus after
Change in Operating Profit
Reclass and Regroup after NFRS 16
Other Operating Expenses 8544308897 | 6727043117 | (18172,657.80) | -21.27% | MPlementation regarding Lease, Share lssue
Expenses directly charge from retained eaming &
adjustment of leftover audit expenses
Depreciation and Amortisation 723152096 | 2256140082 | 15320879.86 | 211999 | Recognition of amortisation of ROU Assets &
depreciation adjusted on some asset.
Operating Profit 158,335,341.80 | 130,493,743.07 | (27,841,598.72) | -17.58%
Regroup of Interest Income from Staff Advances,
Non Operating Income 43,580,880.56 43,648,074.08 67,193.52 0.15% |Setoff Mobile Banking charged Receivable &
Payable
Non Operating Expense 578,796.00 578,796.00 - 0.00%
Profit Before Income Tax 201,337,426.36 | 173,563,021.15 | (27,774,405.20) | -13.79%
Income Tax Expense 68,798,578.06 62,157,353.45 | (6,641,224.61) | -9.65%
68.798578.06 | 62497,049.14 | (6301,528.92) | -9.16% | Change in Income & Expenses after Audit and
Current Tax R A R ' disallow of expenses as per Income Tax Audit
Deferred Tax - (339,695.69) (339,695.69) 0.00% | Deffered Tax recognition for the year
Profit for the Year 132,538,848.30 | 111,405,667.70 | (21,133,180.60) | -15.94%
Profit Attributable to:
Equity Holders of the Financial Institution | 132,538,848.30 | 111,405,667.70 | (21,133,180.60) | -15.94%
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